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AMADEUS FIRE GROUP — FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Amounts stated in EUR k Fiscal year 2017 Fiscal year 2016 Divergency
Jan.-Dec. Jan.-Dec. in per cent

Revenues 184,525 173,295 6.5%

Gross profit 82,483 75,830 8.8%
in per cent 44.7% 43.8%

EBITDA 33,352 30,890 8.0%
in per cent 18.1% 17.8%

EBITA 32,319 30,038 7.6%
in per cent 17.5% 17.3%

EBIT 32,319 30,038 7.6%
in per cent 17.5% 17.3%

Profit before income taxes 31,677 29,451 7.6%
in per cent 17.2% 17.0%

Profit after income taxes 22,065 20,461 7.8%
in per cent 12.0% 13.6%

Profit attributable to minority interest disclosed under liablities -1,282 -1,320 -2.9%

Profit for the period 20,783 19,141 8.6%
in per cent 11.3% 11.0%

- Attributable to non-controlling interests 213 139 53.2%

- Attributable to equity holders of the parent 20,570 19,002 8.3%

Net cash from operating activities 25,493 19,503 30.7%

Net cash from operating activities per share 4.90 3.75 30.7%

Earnings per share 3.96 3.66 8.2%

Average number of shares 5,198,237 5,198,237

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Balance sheet total 78,017 72,746 7.2%

Stockholders' equity 47,125 45,391 3.8%

Return on Equity before Tax in % 60.4% 62.4%

Cash 43,403 40,448 7.3%

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Number of employees (active) 2,724 2,655 2.6%
thereof temporary staff 2,242 2,226 0.7%

Annual report in PDF-Format
www.amadeus-fire.de/investor-relations




AMADEUS FIRE

STEUER-FACHSCHULE

FUR INTERNATIONALE RECHNUNGSLEGUNG

If you want to expand you need space

For over 30 years, the listed Amadeus FiRe Group has been the specialised personnel service provider for professional and
management staff in the fields of accounting, office, banking and IT services at 19 locations throughout Germany. Our core
business in this future market comprises specialised temporary staffing, personnel placement and interim management.

Together with our subsidiaries in the training and education segment, the Dr Endriss Tax College and the Academy of
International Accounting, we offer a unique service portfolio that encompasses recruitment and training.

Over the past years, the majority of our branch offices have moved into new facilities. Modern workplaces, spacious
training centres and inviting rooms for conducting interviews complete the image of Amadeus FiRe as an attractive
personnel service provider and career partner for clients, employees and applicants.
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LETTER FROM THE CEO

Peter Haas, CEO

Ladies and Gentlemen,

2017 was a good year for the Amadeus FiRe Group. Once again, we again
increased our earnings in a positive economic environment with a GDP growth
of 2.2%.

I would like to thank the employees who achieved this result in a highly
competitive market.

This result was attained despite the lower number of working days and in
particular thanks to the pleasing development in personnel placement.

We increased sales revenues by 6.5% to EUR 184.5 million. Due to the increased
sales revenues in personnel placement, the gross profit margin rose from 43.8%
in the previous year to 44.7% despite the contrary effect in temporary staffing
caused by the lower number of working days.

Earnings before interest, taxes and amortisation (EBITA) in the past financial
year amounted to EUR 32.3 million, which constitutes an increase of 7.6% year-
on-year. The EBITA margin was 17.5%.

We achieved a net result of EUR 20.8 million as compared to EUR 19.1 million in
the previous year, which corresponds to a rise of 8.6%.

Our operating activities generated a cash flow of EUR 25.5 million as compared
to EUR 19.5 million in the previous year. Our liquid assets amounted to

EUR 43.4 million on the accounting date, which is above the level of the
previous year.
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The economic forecasts for the global economy, the euro zone and Germany are
positive in every respect and suggest that the economic environment in Germany
will be similar in 2018. However, the effects of equal pay on the temporary work
sector cannot be estimated at this time. It remains to be seen how the user
companies will act.

Our aim is to achieve an improved result year-on-year once again despite further
investments in personnel.

We would like to stick to our dividend policy and let you, our shareholders,
participate in the result. Given that we do not see any additional liquidity needs
at this time, we will propose to distribute the entire net result once again at the
Annual General Meeting. The dividend per share would amount to EUR 3.96,
which would correspond to an increase in dividends by 8.2%.

I would like to thank the members of the Supervisory Board for their good,
constructive cooperation.

On behalf of the Management Board, | would like to thank our employees,
shareholders, clients and business partners for their trust and loyalty.

Kind regards,

ey

Peter Haas

Dividend development

Jahr Dividend per share

in EUR
2017 3.96*
2016 3.66
2015 3.53
2014 3.37
2013 2.83
2012 2.95
2011 2.84
2010 1.67
2009 1.45
2008 1.38
2007 1.27
2006 0.88
* Proposal



SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT

Christoph GrofR,
Chairman of the
Supervisory Board

Dear shareholders,

In the past financial year of 2017, the Amadeus FiRe Group once again achieved an
excellent result. What is more, the company took important steps in terms of setting
the course for its future development. In addition to the further expansion of the sales
organisation, this included the appointment of the new Management Board team in
particular.

The company announced the planned succession in October 2017. Mr Peter Haas, cur-
rent Chairman of the Management Board of Amadeus FiRe AG, had informed the
Supervisory Board that he will not be extending his management contract, which
ends on 31 December 2018. Peter Haas has been a member of the Management Board
of Amadeus FiRe AG for 18 years and has held the position of Chairman of the
Management Board since 2008. During this time, he contributed greatly to shaping
the company’s successful development. Following this decision, the succession plan
that had already been prepared in a joint effort between the Supervisory Board and
the Management Board was implemented.

Mr Robert von Wilfing is to be appointed speaker of the Management Board with
effect from the day of Mr Haas’ resignation. Mr von Wilfing has been a member of
the Management Board of Amadeus FiRe AG since 2012 and is also responsible for
the business area of further education in his capacity as CFO. Mr Dennis Gerlitzki will
also be appointed as a new member of the Management Board of Amadeus FiRe AG
with effect from the day of Mr Haas’ resignation. Mr Gerlitzki will be responsible for
the personnel services business area as Chief Operations Officer. Mr Gerlitzki has wor-
ked successfully in different positions at Amadeus FiRe for 14 years, and has been
responsible for many of the Amadeus FiRe branch offices in Germany as regional
director since 2008.

Both Mr von Wulfing and Mr Gerlitzki have been working closely together with Mr
Haas at the top management level, in both the operational and the strategic fields,
and have the full confidence of the Supervisory Board and the current Chairman of
the Management Board.

The Supervisory Board is convinced that the new management team has the high
level of competence and experience required to manage the company successfully in
the future.

After last year’s Annual General meeting, Ms Ines Leffers informed us that she would
have to give up her position on the Supervisory Board of Amadeus FiRe due to pro-

fessional reasons. At the end of 2017, Ms Sibylle Lust resigned from the Supervisory
Board when she went into retirement.
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I would like to extend a warm welcome to our new members of the Supervisory Board
of Amadeus FiRe AG, Ms Annett Martin and Ms Angelika Kappe. Ms Martin was initi-
ally appointed as Ms Leffers’ successor by the court with the resolution dated 3
August 2017. Ms Martin will be up for election to the Supervisory Board in the con-
text of the upcoming Annual General Meeting. Ms Kappe is stepping into employee
representative Ms Lust’s position as a substitute member, and took up her work on the
Supervisory Board at the beginning of 2018.

The Amadeus FiRe Supervisory Board complies with the Act on Equal Participation of
Women and Men in Management Positions in the Private and Public Sectors. This
applies to both the capital side and the employee side of the Amadeus FiRe Supervi-
sory Board, and secures the Supervisory Board’s capacity to act in the future.

The working atmosphere among all members of the Amadeus FiRe Supervisory Board
is very constructive and characterised by a high level of transparency. This remained
unchanged in the 2017 financial year, both in the plenum and in the committees, and
was confirmed by the annual evaluation of Supervisory Board activities. The Supervi-
sory Board met its obligations as defined by the law, the articles of the company and
the principles of corporate governance with great care in the 2017 financial year.

As Chairman of the Supervisory Board, | would like to express my gratitude to all
members of the Supervisory Board for their continuous commitment to the company
and its employees, and thank them for always maintaining a high level of trust in our
work relationship.

In the course of the year, the Supervisory Board devoted a great deal of attention to
the business- and personnel-related developments and prospects in the Amadeus FiRe
Group. In this context, the Supervisory Board continuously supported and monitored
the Management Board with regard to its management of the company and business
operations in its advisory function. All decisions that were of fundamental impor-
tance to the company were discussed extensively with the Management Board and, if
necessary, decided in the plenum. The Management Board regularly attended the
meetings of the Supervisory Board. The Management Board made sure that the mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board were prepared with regard to decisions and investment
projects subject to their approval in good time. The respective committees supported
the activity of the entire board by carrying out preparatory work. The Supervisory
Board’s vote on the respective reports and proposed resolutions was thus always
based on a preceding thorough assessment and advice.

Beyond the regular meetings, the Management Board also provided regular, prompt
and extensive information to the Supervisory Board about business developments in
the form of written monthly reports. In addition, the Management Board also
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informed the Supervisory Board verbally about the most important economic key
figures, important developments and upcoming decisions. The Management Board
also submitted the half-year report and the quarterly reports to the Supervisory
Board.

The Chairman of the Management Board regularly met with the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board to keep him informed about the current business situation and
significant business transactions. The same applies to the exchange of information
between the chairman of the balance sheet and audit committee and the CFO on
accounting matters.

Meetings of the Supervisory Board and the committees

The meetings in the plenum generally involved an exchange on the development of
sales revenues, earnings and employment, as well as the group’s financial situation
and the measures derived on this basis. The Management Board also offered explana-
tions for deviations of the business development from the approved plans and objec-
tives. Further, the Management Board regularly reported on the risk situation of the
company and the group in the context of the risk management system. Individual
business activities and measures that could be of great significance to the group were
discussed. They were assessed by the Supervisory Board accordingly. The meetings of
the Supervisory Board were characterised by an intensive and open exchange.

A total of five Supervisory Board meetings were held in the reporting period. One
resolution by circulation was also made. All the members of the Supervisory Board
attended more than half of the meetings.

Two committees were formed within the overall Supervisory Board: the personnel
committee and the audit committee. The committees do not have any decision-
making power, but exercise an advisory function. The committees prepare the resolu-
tions to be made by the Supervisory Board and topics to be discussed by the
Supervisory Board. In the subsequent meetings of the Supervisory Board, the com-
mittee chairmen each report on the work the committees have done. The Supervisory
Board considers the number and tasks of the committees formed by the members of
the Supervisory Board to be appropriate and efficient.

The audit committee convened for four meetings in 2017. Depending on the respec-
tive items on the agenda, the auditor, the members of the Management Board and the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board (as a guest) took part in the meetings. The
committee concerned itself primarily with the annual and consolidated accounts as
well as the interim statements, monitoring of the accounting and group accounting
processes, the effectiveness of the internal control system, risk management and the
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internal revision system. The committee further presented the Supervisory Board with
a recommendation regarding the Supervisory Board’s proposal to the Annual General
Meeting of electing the auditor and appointed the auditor following the vote at the
Annual General Meeting. The committee voted on the main points of the audit. The
auditor’s remuneration was determined and the committee assured itself of the audi-
tor’s independence. The committee chairman has special knowledge of and experience
with the application of accounting principles and internal control procedures. He is
independent and not a former member of the company’s Management Board.

The personnel committee consists of three shareholder representatives and one
employee representative. The personnel committee is responsible for employment
agreements with the members of the Management Board as well as other Manage-
ment Board matters and convened twice during the reporting period. There is no
permanent nomination committee at this time. The tasks of the nomination commit-
tee were adopted by the personnel committee, most recently when Ms Martin was
selected.

Corporate Governance

The Supervisory Board continuously follows the specifications of the German Corpo-
rate Governance Code. On 23 October 2017, the Management Board and the Supervi-
sory Board submitted the annual statement of compliance as per Section 161, Para. 1
of the Aktiengesetz (AktG — Germany Stock Corporation Act). The statement, as well
as an extensive report on the amount and structure of the remuneration of the Super-
visory Board and management Board, can be found in the report on corporate gover-
nance in the management report, and was also made permanently accessible to the
shareholders on the company’s homepage.

The members of the Supervisory Board did not communicate any conflicts of interest
in the reporting period.

Annual accounts and consolidated accounts

Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, based in Eschborn, Germany,
audited the annual accounts, compiled in accordance with the specifications of the
German Commercial Code (HGB), and the consolidated accounts of Amadeus FiRe AG,
compiled in accordance with Section 315a of the German Commercial Code on the
basis of the international financial reporting standards (IFRS) to be applied in the
European Union, on 31 December 2017, as well as the joint management report of
Amadeus FiRe AG and the Amadeus FiRe Group duly and taking accounting and the
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risk management system into account. The auditor issued an unqualified opinion for
each of the documents stated above. The auditor further ascertained that the Manage-
ment Board has set up an appropriate monitoring system that is capable of iden-
tifying developments that endanger the continued existence of the company at an
early stage.

The accounting documents, the audit reports of the auditor and the Management
Board’s proposal for using the accumulated profits were presented to all members of
the Supervisory Board for review with sufficient notice. On the occasion of the mee-
ting of the audit committee, the auditor provided an extensive report on the auditing
procedure and the basic results of his audit, and responded to requests for more in-
depth information and additional questions. In the subsequent meeting of the entire
Supervisory Board, the chairman of the audit committee gave an extensive report on
the results of the audits performed by the audit committee. Following an in-depth
debate on the audit procedure and the audit results achieved by the auditor, and after
a thorough examination of the auditor’s report, the Supervisory Board concurred with
the auditor’s result of the audit. On 12 March 2018, the Supervisory Board decided, in
the context of its own audit performed upon the recommendation of the audit com-
mittee, that there were no objections to be raised and approved the compiled
accounts. The annual accounts are hereby adopted. After reviewing the proposal of
the Management Board to use the accumulated profits, the Supervisory Board agreed
to this proposal.

Members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board

On 31 December 2017, the Supervisory Board of Amadeus FiRe AG consisted of six
representatives of the shareholders and six employee representatives. The twelve
acting members of the Supervisory Board are:

- Mr Christoph Grof3, chairman

- Mr Michael C. Wisser, deputy chairman

- Mr Knuth Henneke

- Ms Annett Martin

- Dr Ulrike Schweibert

- Mr Hartmut van der Straeten

- Ms Ulrike Bert, employee representative

- Ms Sibylle Lust, employee representative

- Mr Elmar Roth, employee representative

- Mr Andreas Setzwein, employee representative
- Ms Ulrike Sommer, employee representative

- Mr Matthias Venema, employee representative
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At the end of the financial year, the Management Board consisted of Mr Peter Haas,
Chairman of the Management Board, and Robert von Wilfing, Chief Financial Officer.
In accordance with Section 6 of the articles of Amadeus FiRe AG, the Management
Board of the company consists of at least two members.

I would like to end the report with some words of gratitude this year. 2017 was a
successful financial year in which we achieved record results once again. We owe our
success to the commitment and dedication of each and every employee of the
Amadeus FiRe Group. The Supervisory Board would therefore like to express its sin-
cere thanks to all employees as well as the Management Board. | would like to
express my pleasure in acknowledging the excellent result you have achieved toget-
her, for our company and our shareholders.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, | would like to express my special thanks to our
clients and shareholders for the trust they have put in our company.

Frankfurt am Main, 12 March 2018

on behalf of the Supervisory Board

b1

Christoph Grof3
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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What our clients say

Nice GmbH is one of the satisfied clients of our
branch office in Minster

Nice Deutschland GmbH develops smart home automation systems for residential, industrial and commercial buildings. In
the course of an acquisition process and the resulting reorganisation, commercial manager Damian Proske was looking for
an employee (m/f) to assist his financial accounting team with the additional tasks. Given the framework conditions, the
vacant position could be filled only by a qualified and experienced specialist. This is why he contacted Amadeus FiRe AG. In
the interview, Damian Proske speaks about what it is like to work with Amadeus FiRe and how the personnel service provi-

der helped him to fill his vacant position successfully in no time.

Mr Proske, what sort of situation was Nice in when
you requested personnel from Amadeus FiRe?

When our company, Nice Deutschland GmbH, was acquired
by our Italian parent company, we had to make adjust-
ments in the financial accounting department. The team
was being urged to catch up with business transactions and
file them accordingly. At the same time, we had to create
new structures and prepare documentation. Our company
did not have the staff capacity to handle these additional
tasks that now had to be dealt with alongside our day-to-
day business. We had to get external support as quickly as
possible.

Why did you decide to recruit staff through
Amadeus FiRe?

I was already familiar with Amadeus FiRe from our close
and target-oriented cooperation at other locations. | really
appreciate that your personnel consultants make the effort
to get a detailed picture of the company and the conditions

12

for filling vacant positions right after we submit our
request. When searching for an employee who fits the posi-
tion in our financial accounting team accurately, Amadeus
FiRe can draw on a pool of well-versed candidates with
plenty of professional experience who can work indepen-
dently right from the start and familiarise themselves with
the work quickly. This was essential in order for us to get
the support we needed quickly. Once again, Amadeus FiRe
was able to present me with a number of qualified profiles
right away. If required, the experienced personnel consul-
tants also provide assistance during the interviews and lend
their expertise afterwards.

Which criteria are particularly important to you
when selecting personnel?

When | select new personnel, it is very important to me
that the framework conditions | specified in terms of pro-
fessional qualification and personal qualities are taken into
account. To ensure constructive and harmonious coopera-
tion, the candidates must fit the job description 100 per

AMADEUS FIRE. DIE BESETZER.



The facilities of our branch office in Miinster

www.amadeus-fire.de/muenster

»When searching for an employee who fits the position in our financial accounting team accurately,

Amadeus FiRe can draw on a pool of well-versed candidates with plenty of professional
experience who can work independently right from the start and familiarise themselves

with the work quickly*

cent and also fit in with the team on a personal level. When
| decide on an applicant, it is crucial that they are quick on
the uptake, as this allows them to familiarise themselves
with the work quickly and without any problems. Nice
Deutschland GmbH is always looking for individuals who
identify problems, address them and, ultimately, provide
suggestions for solving them independently. Having an
open dialogue with my contact at Amadeus FiRe about the
position to be filled and the potential employees is also
very important to me.

How do you cooperate with your personnel consul-
tant at Amadeus FiRe and what position has the
personnel service provider been able to fill for you?

Working with our personal consultant at Amadeus FiRe AG
is always a positive experience with a strong focus on the
target. The candidate profiles are presented in a structured,
clearly arranged way that allows for easy comparison,
which enables us to select suitable applicants and arrange
interviews in no time at all. Amadeus FiRe also arranges

Damian Proske, commercial manager of Nice GmbH
and one of our numerous satisfied clients

and accompanies the remaining process, from making an
offer to the desired candidate and all the way to signing
the contract. With regard to our vacant position in the
financial accounting team, we ultimately decided on a
candidate who met all the criteria to our greatest satis-
faction.

What other clients say

Service orientation beyond comparison.
Sven Gaudeck, Human Resources Officer, Honda Deutschland GmbH

The fast processing of requests and target group-oriented candidate pro-
files convinced us that Amadeus FiRe is a reliable partner.
Ute Siebenschuh/Thomas Vogel, management consultants, Commerzbank AG

Keep up the good work! Perfect preselection, quick and flexible reactions.
Martin Bergen, Managing Director, securPharm e.V.

We were very impressed with Amadeus FiRe. They work quickly and
provide high-quality candidates, and they have helped us to fill important
positions in no time and to our great satisfaction.

Ute Axer, Human Resources Officer, ITConcepts Professional GmbH
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What our employees say

Sofia Juncker, Area Manager of the branch office in Mainz and one
of many dedicated sales employees in Germany.

Amadeus FiRe offers its sales employees many career opportunities. Sofia Juncker's success story illustrates how these
career opportunities are used. She joined Amadeus FiRe as a personnel consultant in February 2014. Just 18 months later,
she was promoted to senior consultant. She took on managerial responsibility for the first time in March 2016, when she
was promoted to managing consultant. Today, she manages the branch office in Mainz. In the interview, Sofia Juncker
tells us about her tasks as area manager and why she enjoys working at Amadeus FiRe.

Why did you join Amadeus FiRe?

| already gained my first professional experience in sales as
a student. | quickly realised that | very much enjoy this work,
so after | finished my degree, | decided to start my profes-
sional career in this field of work. | found the combination
of human resources and sales particularly exciting, so | deci-
ded very quickly that | wanted to work for a personnel
service provider.

Tells us about your career path at Amadeus FiRe so
far.

| started as a personnel consultant at Amadeus FiRe in
February 2014. My supervisor back then did a great job of
showing me the ropes, so | was able to achieve my sales tar-
gets relatively quickly and was promoted to senior consultant
just a year and a half later. | took on managerial responsibi-
lity for the first time in March 2016, when | was promoted to
managing consultant. During this time, | was the team leader
for the Office/IT Services division. | took my third career step
in three years in July 2017, when | took on the position of
area manager of the branch office in Mainz.
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What are your tasks as area manager?

My job as area manager is to recruit new employees for my
branch office and show them the ropes of the job. Motivation
is very important to me in this context, which is why | make
sure to exchange ideas and feedback with my entire team
on a regular basis. My day-to-day business also involves tal-
king to our client companies and offering them personnel
solutions that are tailored to their needs. Given that expan-
ding and strengthening our customer relationships is an
important success factor for our branch office, the acquisi-
tion of new customers is also part of my field of responsibi-

lity.

What do you find fascinating about your tasks?

It's the mixture of different fields that fascinates me and
makes my work day exciting. For example, | am very much
involved in expanding our location. But | also find it very
exciting to witness the further development of each of my
employees. However, | am not just the contact person for my
employees, but also assist our external employees and clients
whenever they have questions or suggestions. Thanks to this

AMADEUS FIRE. DIE BESETZER.
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The facilities of our branch office in Mainz

www.amadeus-fire.de/mainz

»Every personnel consultant at Amadeus FiRe has the opportunity to embark on a successful career path.

| took this opportunity to further my career at Amadeus FiRe and am very happy
that | was able to work my way up from consultant to area manager*

lively exchange with different personalities, every day brings
new challenges and my day-to-day work never gets dull.

Why do you enjoy working here?

Amadeus FiRe offers its employees many development
opportunities. They are not only challenged, but receive sup-
port in the form of internal training. This gives every per-
sonnel consultant the opportunity to embark on a successful
career path. | took these opportunities to further my career
at Amadeus FiRe and am very happy that | was able to work
my way up from consultant to area manager. | would like to
take this opportunity to compliment our great team spirit in
Mainz. We all support each other and can rely on each other.
This also contributes to the feelgood factor. As regards my
tasks, | still very much enjoy supporting our external
employees in particular. Another reason why | like working
here is that | believe that Amadeus FiRe is the most authentic
personnel service provider in the market and maintains a
very honest and professional relationship with its clients and
applicants. Based on various different feedback sessions, |
know that both target groups greatly appreciate this philo-
sophy when they work with us.

Sofia Juncker, Area Manager
of the Amadeus FiRe branch office in Mainz

What are your goals for the future?

I would like to prove myself as area manger and achieve
even greater market penetration together with my dedicated
employees. Ultimately, my aim is to expand the branch office
even further and to consistently develop and support my
team.

Voices of our employees

| owe a lot to my employer. Amadeus FiRe has shaped me and helped

me grow both professionally and as a person.
Manuel Schmitz, Area Manager of the Dortmund branch office

| found the task of implementing something new with complete inde-

pendence very appealing. Another factor that sparked my enthusiasm

was Amadeus FiRe’s nationwide network and the extensive amount of
communication the job involves.

Olaf Mayer, Managing Consultant, Berlin branch office

| have been promoted four times over the last five years at Amadeus
FiRe and have worked my way up from recruiter to area manager.
Georg Alexander Bell, Area Manager of the Essen branch office

15
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

Economic environment

Combined management report for fiscal year 2017

1. Economic environment

Overall economic development

The German economy showed robust growth in 2017.
Gross domestic product (GDP) after adjusting for inflation
grew by 2.2%, which represents the highest increase since
2011. The economy grew by 1.9% and 1.7% in 2016 and
2015, respectively.

After somewhat weaker growth of 1.0% year on year in
the first six months, economic momentum was brisk again
in the third quarter (2.3% after adjusting for inflation
compared with the prior-year quarter). In the fourth quar-
ter, the economy stabilized at a very good level on the
back of high new orders and upbeat signs from economic
mood indicators.

Responsible for this positive development in the German
economy in 2017 was domestic expenditure. Gross invest-
ment increased by 3.6% (price-adjusted) year on year, due
primarily to the above-average growth of 3.0% in gross
capital expenditure. Investments in construction were
2.6% higher than in the prior year and investments in new
machinery and equipment rose by 3.5% (price-adjusted). In
terms of consumption, private consumer spending made
another major contribution to growth this year of 2.0%
(price-adjusted), while growth in government spending
was below average at 1.4% year on year. The balance of
trade contributed 0.2 percentage points to GDP growth this
year. Price-adjusted exports of goods and services rose by
4.7%, while imports increased by 5.2% in the same period.

On the production side of GDP, the German economy was
boosted by almost all of its sectors in 2017. Strong year-
on-year increases were recorded by the information and
communication service industries (up 3.9%) as well as the
trade, transportation and hospitality industries (up 2.9%).
The manufacturing industry grew by 2.5%, with the
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export-strong sectors making a particularly strong contri-
bution of 2.7%. The construction industry expanded by
2.2% adjusted for price effects compared with a year
earlier. Business services were also well up, increasing by
2.5% on the prior year.

Public finances likewise continued on their course of
consolidation in 2017. The government sector, including
the federal, state and local governments as well as social
insurance carriers, closed the year with a financing surplus
of a record-breaking EUR 38.4b according to provisional
calculations. Based on GDP at unadjusted prices, the
budget surplus was 1.2% in 2017. According to prelimi-
nary calculations, the German state therefore posted a sur-
plus for the fourth year running.

Economic sentiment in Germany was better in 2017 than a
year earlier, in line with the economic growth. On average,
the ifo Business Climate Index was some 5.9% higher than
2016 at 114.7. It peaked in November 2017, reaching its
highest level since February 2014. German companies
rated their current business situation as much better on
average than in the prior year. The companies’ business
expectations also improved year on year.

The development of the German economy in 2017 was
accompanied by strong global economic growth, which is
continuing on its upward trajectory. Increasing optimism
predominated, buoyed by the global economic mood indi-
cators.

According to figures from the IMF, global economic
growth came to 3.7% in 2017, the highest growth rate for
seven years. Major emerging markets such as Russia and
Brazil benefited from rising commodity prices and came
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out of recession. The situation in China is also positive,
with the economy growing 6.8% in 2017. Economic
growth increased in the industrialized countries as well
and the upturn continued. The US achieved GDP growth of
2.3% in 2017, while Japan recorded GDP growth of 1.8%.
The eurozone grew by 2.4% in the same period.

The German labor market was still in good condition in
2017 and largely unaffected by developments in the eco-
nomy. An average of 44.3 million people were employed
in Germany in 2017, a new record high and thus the
highest level since German reunification. According to
preliminary calculations by the German Federal Statistical
Office (Destatis), the number of people in gainful employ-
ment increased by 638,000 persons (1.5%) in 2017 against
the prior year. The increase in employment, which has
been ongoing for more than a decade, thus continued in
2017. In this connection, negative demographic effects
were balanced out by increased labor force participation

Economic environment

by the German population as well as the immigration of
foreign workers.

In 2017, the number of people in insurable employment
again grew more strongly than the number in gainful
employment. There were 32.8 million people in insurable
employment in October 2017, 743,000 or 2.3% more than
the year before (2016: up 602,000). Even though the
increase in insurable employment has been subdued since
mid-2017, these continued gains reflect the very strong
underlying condition of the labor market. In addition to
the economy, factors such as sectoral change, a shortage of
qualified workers and immigration played a role, leading
to a stable upward trend.

Unemployment and underemployment fell further on
average in 2017. The low risk of becoming unemployed
fell even further, while the chance of escaping unem-
ployment by finding a job improved slightly. An average
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Economic environment

of 2,533,000 people were registered as unemployed in Ger-
many in 2017, down 158,000 or 5.9% on the prior year.
This is the lowest level of unemployment since 1991. The
number of unemployed as a percentage of the total civilian
labor force was 5.7% on average in 2017, down 0.4 per-
centage points year on year. As a result, unemployment
has seen only limited benefit from the creation of jobs.
This shows that jobseekers’ profiles often fail to match the
demand for workers in terms of field, qualifications and
geographic location.

Demand for the factor of labor remains high in Germany.
After more or less steady growth throughout the reporting
year, the jobs index published by the German Federal

Industry performance

Temporary staffing

The number of people working in employee leasing ar-
rangements rose further in 2017. According to the figures
published by the German Federal Employment Agency,
933,045 people were in temporary employment on average
in the first half of 2017, up 4.2% on the corresponding
prior-year figure. The Agency’s trend data for the first

10 months of 2017 indicate an increase of around 4% in
the number of people working in the temporary employ-
ment sector.

The collective wage agreement in the temporary staffing
industry, which is valid until the end of 2019, raised the
pay received by temporary workers by 2.5% (West) and
4.0% (East) as of 1 March 2017. This increase as well as the
positive salary trend in Germany have made temporary
staffing services more expensive for customer companies.
The volume of the temporary staffing market can therefore
be expected to have grown by around 4% to 5% in 2017.

However, Amadeus FiRe Group’s core submarket of com-
mercial and IT professions (white collar) saw a weaker
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Employment Agency (BA-X), which gages the demand for
workers, hit an all-time record of 256 points at the end of
2017. The average level of the BA-X index exceeded the
average prior-year level by more than 21 points (almost
10%) in 2017. This positive trend reflects the change in the
structure of demand for workers that has taken place in
recent years. Companies’ demand for new employees is no
longer determined by the general economic trend but
rather by other factors such as the ongoing demand for
specialists coupled with limited supply.

The labor market is and will remain an important stabili-
zing element for Germany’s economy.

trend in the first half of 2017. This is due to the small
number of available qualified candidates as well as to
excess demand on the labor market, giving qualified
candidates more opportunities to take up a permanent
position.

In this light, recruiting enough temporary workers to meet
the strong demand, in particular for qualified staff, remains
a challenge for the industry. This shortage of candidates is
clearly reflected in the number of vacant positions reported
to the German Federal Employment Agency by the tempo-
rary staffing industry. As in 2016, temporary staffing
accounted for around one third (32.0%) of the total number
of positions reported in 2017.

The German temporary staffing market is still heavily frag-
mented. According to figures published by the German
Federal Employment Agency as of 30 June 2017, the num-
ber of companies dedicated entirely or mostly to employee
leasing is virtually unchanged at 13,042. The majority
operate in the industrial sector, where competition is cor-
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respondingly fierce as a result. The Amadeus FiRe Group
does not operate in this sector.

The law drafted by the German Federal Ministry of Labor
and Social Affairs for the amendment of the AUG [“Arbeit-
nehmeriberlassungsgesetz”: German Personnel Leasing
Act] and other laws was adopted in 2016 and entered into
force on 1 April 2017. This law provides for a maximum
lease duration of generally 18 months as well as equal pay
for temporary workers after working for the company to
which they are assigned for at least nine months. The con-
sequences of the change in the law do not affect the cur-
rent fiscal year and will only result in higher temporary
staffing costs for customer companies in 2018. However, it
is already evident that the administrative workload for both
the temporary staffing industry and in particular the
customer companies that borrow staff will be immense.

Collective agreements for the temporary staffing industry
have been in place since 2003. From the outset, Amadeus
FiRe has applied the industry collective wage agreement
concluded between the iGZ [“Interessenverband Deutscher
Zeitarbeitsunternehmen”: German Temporary Employment
Companies Industry Association] and the DGB [“Deutscher
Gewerkschaftsbund”: German Trade Union Federation]. The
collective agreement currently in force was concluded on
30 November 2016 and has long-term validity until

Economic environment

31 ecember 2019. The pay rises (based on the pay specified
by the BAP and iGZ collective agreements with the DGB
collective bargaining association) specified therein are as
follows:

West East
From 1 March 2017 2.5% 4.0%
(&9.23 € for pay (4.82% for pay
categorie 1) category 1,2 8.91 €)
From 1 April 2018 2.8% 4.0%
(2 9.49 € for pay (& 9.27 € for pay
category 1) category 1)
From 1 January 2019 Increase for pay categories
1 and 2 to minimum wage
of EUR 9.49
From 1 April 2019 3.0% (pay categories 1 3.5%
and 2:32%29.79€ (2 9.49 € in for pay
for pay category 1) category 1)
From 1 October 2019 Increase for pay Increase for pay

categories 1 and 2 to categories 1 and 2 to
minimum wage 9.96 €  minimum wage 9.66 €

Following the amendment to the German Personnel Leasing
Act, the past year has also seen changes to the industry
surcharge agreements introduced gradually in 11 industries
from November 2012. As a result of the industry surcharge
agreements, in cases of extended periods of assignment and
correspondingly high surcharge levels, surcharges of up to

Number of temporary staff in Germany

40
1,000,000
30
20 800,000
s
g %
S 10 ‘ g
— ©
: | (I {1 o g
k= 0 ||I|.,. III|||I||.....|.|.|”| “ I||I|I”””| £
S i e K
NITTT
-10 400,000
-20
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
== Number of temporary staff = === Change compared with the prior-year month in percent Statistics from the Federal Employment Agency

19



MANAGEMENT REPORT

Economic environment

50% on collectively agreed pay had to be paid. Following
the introduction of the statutory equal pay rule, an addi-
tional surcharge level was installed in the pay system set
out in the collective industry surcharge agreements in lieu
of an “equal pay” salary. This new surcharge level normally
applies after a contractual term of 15 months. With this
additional surcharge level, surcharges of up to 67% on col-
lectively agreed pay are possible. The different changes
made to the respective industry surcharge agreements have
significantly increased the complexity of contract admini-
stration.

On the one hand, the abovementioned legal regulations and
collectively bargained provisions made temporary staffing
an acceptable option in Germany for returning to the labor
market and for career development. In turn, this pre-
sumably allowed the acceptance of temporary staffing to

Permanent placement

Until a few years ago, the hiring patterns of companies
were influenced primarily by general economic trends.
However, this correlation is now weakening increasingly.
Qualified staff have become scarce in recent years. Compa-
nies are trying to secure their workforce over the long
term and are prepared to invest accordingly. As a result,
the permanent placement market has recently ceased being
a strong early warning indicator of the economy’s pro-
spects. Other factors such as sectoral change, a tight labor
market, a shortage of skilled labor as well as immigration
now play an important role with respect to employment
and are responsible for the stable upward trend in perma-
nent placement. Experience has shown that when excess
demand on the labor market is compounded by a shortage
of qualified specialists, there is a strong trend towards per-
manent contracts.

The permanent placement market is currently character-
ized by a very limited supply of qualified professionals
and executives. According to the BA-X, demand for wor-
kers in Germany grew steadily and at times very dynami-
cally in 2017, which points to increasing difficulties in
filling positions. According to a survey conducted by the
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increase in general. On the other hand, such legal regu-
lations and collectively bargained provisions have made
temporary staffing increasingly expensive, with price hikes
making it harder for German companies to achieve greater
workforce flexibility.

Over the first decade of the millennium in particular, the
temporary staffing sector has become firmly established
and more important in Germany. One indicator of this is
the penetration rate (i.e., the number of temporary staff
relative to the total number in gainful employment). After
standing at less than 1.0% in Germany at the turn of the
millennium, this rate was just above the prior-year figure
at 2.1% in the reporting year. In a European comparison,
this leaves Germany somewhere in the middle. The UK and
the Netherlands are examples of countries where the pene-
tration rate is traditionally particularly high.

German Chambers of Industry and Commerce in the fall
of 2017, 56% (fall 2016: 48%) of the companies surveyed
now see the shortage of specialists as a risk to the growth
of their business. This is a new record high and is now
the central risk factor for companies’ business perfor-
mance in the medium term. The ifo employment barome-
ter, which presents the employment plans of the compa-
nies surveyed for the next three months, also indicates a
positive employment trend. In December 2017, the baro-
meter hit a new historic high of 113.5 points (prior year:
111.6 points). Given the competitive labor market and
demographic changes, the recruitment of qualified staff
will remain a challenging task for companies over the
long term.

Amadeus FiRe believes that the permanent placement mar-
ket performed well again in 2017 thanks to ongoing excess
demand and limited candidate availability. Unfortunately,
there are no reliable sources indicating the size of the mar-
ket in Germany. According to our estimates, the permanent
placement market in Germany has a total volume of

EUR 2.0b to EUR 2.5b and is set to grow further.
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Training

The overall training market is likely to have remained
stable for the most part in 2017. As in the prior years, the
training institutions that form Wuppertaler Kreis e.V. —
Bundesverband betriebliche Weiterbildung expected the
revenue trend for 2017 to be stable or slightly positive.

The niche market for tax, finance and accounting training
(in which the training companies of the Amadeus FiRe
Group operate) is not very sensitive to economic cycles
than the economy at large, mainly thanks to its high pro-
portion of private customers.

Unlike corporate customers, private customers plan their
own professional training on a very long-term basis, and
their decisions with respect to training are less dependent
on short-term general economic trends and oriented more
toward their long-term plans for their private lives and

Economic environment

careers. Economic upturns and downturns therefore have
more of a delayed impact on long-running training initia-
tives, and their effect is limited. The situation on the
market for private customers is therefore likely to have
remained stable on the whole, thanks in no small part to
still very robust domestic employment levels in 2017.

The corporate customer business (mainly public and in-
house business), on the other hand, is much more sensitive
to short-term economic trends or regulatory changes. The
field of tax, finance and accounting training is also affec-
ted by the extent of new legal regulations and changes to
existing laws. There was no significant demand for
training as a result of statutory changes and, consequently,
no boom in the area of seminars in 2017. Overall, in-house
training is becoming increasingly important for compa-
nies, including with a view to employee retention.
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2. Business Situation of the Amadeus FiRe Group

The Amadeus FiRe Group generated consolidated revenue
of EUR 184.5m in fiscal year 2017 (prior year:

EUR 173.3m) — a year-on-year increase of 6.5%. The
service segments temporary staffing, permanent placement
and training made positive contributions to revenue.
Revenue in the interim management service segment was
down slightly.

Sales Revenues in EURm

1421 161.1 169.7 173.3 184.5
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Cost of sales came to EUR 102.0 m, up 4.7% on the prior
year. In the Amadeus FiRe Group, this figure mainly com-
prises the personnel expenses under employee leasing
arrangements, fees for interim and project managers, the
costs for internal consultants working exclusively in the
field of permanent placement as well as expenses for
instructors in connection with courses, training materials
and rent for training venues.

As a result, the gross profit for fiscal year 2017 amounted
to EUR 82.5m (prior year: EUR 75.8m). This is a EUR 6.7m
or 8.8% increase in comparison to the prior year, leading
to an increase in the gross profit margin of 0.9 percentage
points, from 43.8% in the prior year to 44.7%.

For more detailed comments on revenue and the gross
profit margins for each service, see the descriptions of the
business situation for the individual segments.

Selling and administrative expenses came to EUR 50.4m,
compared with EUR 46.0m in the prior year. The increase
of EUR 4.4m was mainly due to higher personnel expenses
in the operating business and associated personnel-related
eXpenses.
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Profit from operations before goodwill impairment
(EBITA), the Amadeus FiRe Group’s most significant per-
formance indicator, came to EUR 32.3m for the fiscal year.
That represents a new record for the Amadeus FiRe Group
and an increase of 7.6% or EUR 2.3m. The record was
achieved even though fiscal year 2017 had three fewer
chargeable days than the prior year, leading to an effect
on revenue and earnings of around EUR 1.5m that had to
be offset.

Gross profit inEURm
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The EBITA margin of 17.5% exceeded the figure of 17.3%
recorded in the prior year by 0.2 percentage points.

EBITA inEURm
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The Amadeus FiRe Group’s profit after taxes came to

EUR 22.1m, an increase of EUR 1.6m (up 7.8%). In the
reporting year 2017, the profit after taxes was impacted by
EUR 0.6m (prior year: EUR 0.6m) in finance costs. As in
the prior year, the increase in these costs is entirely due to
the effect of the higher measurement for accounting pur-
poses of the settlement option held by the non-controlling
interests of Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss due to the
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positive performance of business. The share of profit after
taxes that is attributable to non-controlling interests
reported under liabilities and equity came to EUR 1.5m
(prior year: EUR 1.5m).

Overall, the Amadeus FiRe Group realized a profit for
fiscal year 2017 of EUR 20.8m, up 8.6% on the prior-year
profit of EUR 19.1m.

Earnings per share stand at EUR 3.96 (prior year:
EUR 3.66) with respect to the profit for fiscal year 2017
attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

3. Development of the Segments

For a good 30 years, the Amadeus FiRe Group has been a
specialized personnel services provider for professionals
and executives in the fields of commerce and IT at

19 locations throughout Germany. Amadeus FiRe is a
reliable and accepted partner both for its own employees
and for its customers. The Amadeus FiRe Group works
with national and international companies of varying sizes
across all industries.

Our core business comprises specialist temporary staffing,
permanent placement and interim and project manage-
ment. The Amadeus FiRe Group also provides training
offerings from Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss and Akade-
mie fur Internationale Rechnungslegung. The Company’s
core competencies are supporting its customers by provi-
ding personnel within the framework of the German Per-
sonnel Leasing Act, recruitment and permanent placement
of professionals and executives, interim and project
management as well as the provision of training in the
areas of tax, finance and accounting and financial control.
The Group only offers these services in Germany.

Profit for the year in EUR m

14.9 17.7 18.3 19.1
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Segment reporting is based on the two segments, person-
nel services (temporary staffing, permanent placement,
interim and project management) and training, in accor-
dance with the Group’s management accounts.

In the personnel services segment, the Amadeus FiRe
Group focuses on the fields of commerce and IT, more spe-
cifically in the four divisions of accounting, banking,
office and IT services. With the three personnel services of
temporary staffing, permanent placement and interim and
project management, the aim is to always offer Amadeus
FiRe customers a broad spectrum of flexible solutions for a
range of needs.

Customer companies thus benefit from greater flexibility
when planning the assignment of human resources and
can respond more quickly in peak periods. These compa-
nies can thus respond in the event of personnel bottle-
necks or surpluses and can secure capacities when imple-
menting projects. They are also able to benefit from the
Amadeus FiRe Group’s current market access and excellent
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market image when looking for and selecting personnel
and thus find personnel and reduce the associated costs
thanks to the time and resources saved.

Not only our customer companies, but also applicants and
employees can make use of our many years of experience
and in-depth expertise in the field of commercial profes-
sionals. This applies in particular to people looking to
change jobs or pursue a new career in one of our specialist
areas.

Our training segment offers corporate and private custo-
mers training with a particular focus on finance, accoun-
ting, tax and financial control, thereby providing our

clients with a service complementing the professional
focus of our personnel services segment. Participants keep
their professional knowledge at a competitive level,
improve their appeal on the labor market and ensure that
they are able to progress professionally by attending the
wide variety of top-quality courses and seminars run
throughout Germany. Both private individuals seeking to
gain recognized qualifications at various levels and com-
panies looking to develop their employees’ expertise and
skills make use of the offerings.

Temporary staffing, permanent placement, interim and project management segment

In fiscal year 2017, revenue thus came to EUR 162.4m
after EUR 152.6m in the prior year, an increase in the per-
sonnel services segment of EUR 9.8m or 6.4%. The tempo-
rary staffing and permanent placement segment services
contributed positively to the increase. By contrast, revenue
from interim and project management was below the
prior-year level.

The sales organization was expanded as planned in

2017, although final implementation was slightly short of
target. Amadeus FiRe continues to impose high require-
ments on its prospective employees and pursues a restric-
tive hiring policy. The prevailing shortage of qualified per-
sonnel is also making it difficult to increase headcount. We
succeeded in enlarging the organization despite these chal-
lenges, particularly in the second half of the year.

The recruitment of qualified temporary staff was also a
major challenge due to excess demand on the labor
market. Permanent placement activities once again made a
higher than proportional contribution to growth.

The gross profit margin improved from 42.7% to 43.6%.
The increase stems from the higher growth and increased
share of permanent placement in total revenue. Looking at
the individual services, all three report gross profit margins
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that are lower than in the prior year. In calendar year
2017, there were 250 working days and therefore three
fewer chargeable days than in 2016 (253 working days).
This had a negative effect on the gross profit margin in
temporary staffing, which improved year on year after eli-
mination of this effect.

The segment’s selling and administrative expenses rose by
EUR 3.5m to EUR 42.6m in the past fiscal year. Although
this 8.9% increase in selling and administrative expenses
was greater than the growth in revenue, it was neverthe-
less slightly lower than expected and mainly stemmed
from an increase in the personnel-related expenses of the
sales organization (up EUR 2.8m). These include salary
increases during 2017, the increase in headcount in the
branches, in particular in the second half of the year, as
well as in additional resources in the recruiting and legal
departments. Rental expenses also increased (up EUR 0.2m)
as a result of larger branches. Here, Amadeus FiRe also
aims to offer its employees and applicants attractive
offices in easily accessible locations.

The segment’s result before goodwill impairment came in
at EUR 28.1m, a EUR 2.0m or 7.7% increase in comparison
to the prior year. As a result, the profit margin rose from
17.1% in the prior year to 17.3%.
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Investments of EUR 1.7m in the reporting year were up in
comparison to the prior year (EUR 1.4m). The first part of a
new sales software program was successfully introduced in
the personnel services segment in the fiscal year. The
second part will be commissioned in fiscal year 2018.

EUR 3.2m has been invested in this project since it was
launched at the end of 2014.

Temporary staffing

The temporary staffing service reported revenue growth of
2.4% or EUR 2.9m in fiscal year 2017. Revenue of

EUR 124.2m was generated in the temporary staffing
business. Fiscal year 2017 had three fewer chargeable days
than the prior year, which is equivalent to an effect on
revenue, gross profit and earnings of -EUR 1.5m.

The drop in orders at the end of 2016 and beginning of
2017 was in line with the long-term average at around
10%. The volume of orders was below the comparable
prior-year figures in the first two quarters. In the second
half of the year, the number of orders increased and
exceeded the prior-year level.

Temporary staffing Revenue in EUR m
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We can still observe that customers are deciding to perma-
nently employ a candidate for positions that were formally
filled with temporary workers. This development reflects
the competitive labor market. As noted, the Company’s
own sales organization was enlarged in the course of the
year. In turn, the size of the sales organization ultimately
has an impact on Amadeus FiRe’s market presence, order
situation and growth potential.

At 34.2%, the gross profit margin for temporary staffing
was slightly lower than the prior year’s figure of 34.9%.

Development of the Segments

The fewer chargeable days available had a negative effect
on the gross profit margin for temporary staffing. There
was an effect of 0.8 percentage points from the three fewer
days.

Temporary staffing’s share of total revenue fell from 70%
to 67% in 2017.

Permanent placement

There was a noticeable increase in revenue for the perma-
nent placement service in the past year. The labor market
has been in good condition in recent years with excess
demand for qualified candidates and companies being very
eager to hire, and this continues to be the case. When
availability is poor, companies tend to try to retain staff
and secure resources by offering permanent contracts.
Amadeus FiRe is experiencing a shift in orders from tem-
porary staffing to permanent placement. The competitive
labor market continues to make potential candidates more
willing to change jobs as they perceive the risk related to
changing jobs to be lower. This is also positively affecting
permanent placement.

In the fiscal year, revenue from permanent placement grew
to just under the EUR 30m mark. Following a very positive
year, permanent placement revenue improved by 33.6% to
EUR 29.0m (prior year: EUR 21.7m). Since the start of
efforts to significantly expand the sales organization in
fiscal year 2010, the permanent placement service has
increased its proportion of total revenue from 6.8% to
15.7% and, alongside temporary staffing, plays an impor-
tant role in the sales process.

Permanent placement Revenue in EUR m

14.0 15.7 18.3 21.7 29.0

2013 2014 2015 2016



MANAGEMENT REPORT

Development of the Segments

Interim and project management

In contrast to temporary staffing, interim and project
management does not place its own staff at customer com-
panies. All work is carried out with independent service
providers. In this way, the expertise of external specialists
is made available to customer companies for a limited
period of time in connection with commercial projects.

Revenue from interim and project management fell 4.2%
to EUR 9.2m in the fiscal year (prior year: EUR 9.6m). Its
percentage of total revenue decreased from 5.5% in the
prior year to 5.0% in the reporting year. In the past few
years, the interim and project management service made
only small steps and recorded low growth. This came to an
end in 2017. In some regions, expectations were not met
and market potential was not sufficiently exploited. Steps
have been taken to increase the focus on interim and
project management in the regions.

Interim and project management Revenue in EUR m
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The gross profit for interim and project management
amounted to EUR 2.4m and thus fell short of the prior-
year figure of EUR 2.6m. The gross profit margin de-
teriorated to 26.2% (prior year: 27.1%).
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Training Segment

The service portfolios of all of the companies in the
Amadeus FiRe Group’s training segment are established in
the niche market for training in the fields of tax, finance
and accounting and financial control.

With a history stretching back 67 years, Steuer-Fachschule
Dr. Endriss has successfully established itself as Germany’s
largest specialist school for professional training in the
fields of tax, accounting and financial control. Its portfolio
of services covers preparation for state examinations such
those for tax advisors, tax specialists, accountants and
financial controllers. The company also runs recognized
private certificate courses specially designed to prepare
participants for professional practice in the field of
accounting (e.g., as a financial accountant, accounting
clerk, payroll accountant or fixed asset accountant). The
product portfolio is rounded off by an extensive range of
seminars which is growing all the time.

The portfolio of services offered by the training segment is
enhanced by Akademie fur Internationale Rechnungs-
legung and its specialist qualifications in international
accounting in accordance with IASs/IFRSs and US GAAP.
In addition to many different formats dealing with essen-
tial topics and special issues relating to international
accounting, the academy’s premium product is the “Certifi-
cate in International Accounting” (CINA®), which is well
established and widely recognized in the business world.

The services offered by TaxMaster GmbH add an academic
qualification in the form of a master’s degree to the range
of products in the training segment. This course provides
students with a combination of professional (tax advisor)
and university qualifications (Master of Arts) in the field of
taxation and accounting, resulting in an attractive dual
qualification for the graduate.

Like 2016, 2017 was characterized by low levels of legisla-
tive activity, with few new topics on both the national
agenda and with respect to international accounting as
well as tax law. Nonetheless, the company boosted the
number of participants in its seminars as well as in general
qualifications compared to the prior year. The total number
of new participants in all training courses improved to just
under 16,000 in the reporting year.
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Revenue from the training segment increased from

EUR 20.7m the prior year to EUR 22.1m in the reporting
year. The consistent implementation of the product and
location strategy, the development in the area of tax advi-
sory training programs including the TaxMaster course
and the systematic development and expansion of the
range of seminars contributed to this positive result.

Training segment Revenue in EUR m

16.7 17.4 19.1 20.7 221

2014 2015 2016

The gross profit margin increased by 1.5 percentage points
from 51.3% to 52.8%, mainly due to an increase in the
number of participants in established events.

The segment’s result before goodwill impairment
(EUR 4.2m) exceeded the level achieved in the prior year
(EUR 3.9m) by 7.7%.

Development of the Segments
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4. Assets, liabilities and financial position of Amadeus FiRe Group

Composition of assets, equity and liabilities

Amounts stated in EUR m 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 Change
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Software 4.0 5.1% 3.0 4.1% 1.0 33%
Goodwill 6.9 8.8% 6.9 9.5% 0.0 0%
Property, plant and equipment 1.7 2.2% 15 2.1% 0.2 13%
Deferred tax assets 1.1 1.4% 1.0 1.4% 01 10%
13.7 17.6% 12.5 17.2% 1.2 10%
Current assets
Income tax credit 0.0 0.0% 0.7 1.0% 0.7 -100%
Trade receivables 204 26.2% 18.6 25.6% 1.8 10%
Other assets 0.1 0.1% 0.1 0.1% 0.0 0%
Prepaid expenses 05 0.6% 0.5 0.7% 0.0 0%
Cash and cash equivalents 43.4 55.6% 40.4 55.6% 3.0 7%
64.4 82.6% 60.2 82.8% 4.2 7%
Total assets 78.0 100.0% 72.7  100.0% 5.8 7%
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Subscribed capital 5.2 6.7% 5.2 7.2% 0.0 0%
Capital reserves 11.3 14.5% 11.2 15.7% 0.1 1%
Retained earnings 30.1 38.6% 28.6 39.3% 15 5%
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 46.6 59.7% 45.0 61.7% 1.6 4%
Non-controlling interests 0.6 0.8% 04 0.6% 0.2 50%
47.1 60.4% 45.4 62.4% 1.7 4%
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities to non-controlling interests 5.3 6.8% 4.7 6.5% 0.6 13%
Other liabilities and accrued liabilities 0.6 0.8% 2.0 1.7% -14 -70%
Deferred tax liabilities 0.6 0.8% 0.6 0.8% 0.0 0%
6.6 8.5% 7.3 10.0% -0.7 -10%
Current liabilities
Income tax liabilities 0.8 1.0% 0.0 0.0% 0.8
Trade payables 15 1.9% 14 2.0% 01 %
Liabilities to non-controlling interests 1.6 2.1% 1.6 2.2% 0.0 0%
Other liabilities and accrued liabilities 20.4 26.2% 17.1 24.5% 3.3 19%
24.3 31.2% 20.1 27.6% 4.2 21%
Total equity and liabilities 78.0 100.0% 72.7 100.0% 5.3 7%
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In fiscal year 2017, the Amadeus FiRe Group’s total assets
rose by EUR 5.3m to EUR 78.0m (prior year: EUR 72.7m).
The equity and liabilities side of the balance sheet was still
dominated by a high equity ratio of 60.4% (prior year:
62.4%). This means that the structure of the Amadeus FiRe
Group’s financing remains solid.

Non-current assets increased by EUR 1.2m to EUR 13.7m
in the fiscal year. This is mainly due to the ongoing project
to implement a new sales software program.

Current assets increased by EUR 4.1m to EUR 64.4m, with
cash and cash equivalents up EUR 3.0m. Trade receivables
increased by EUR 1.8m in line with revenue, while an
income tax credit of EUR 0.7m reported in the prior year
no longer exists.

Investment and financing

Assets, liabilities and financial position of Amadeus FiRe Group

On the liabilities side, non-current liabilities decreased by
EUR 0.7m to EUR 6.6m. As of the balance sheet date, they
include liabilities to non-controlling interests of Steuer-
Fachschule Dr. Endriss totaling EUR 5.3m, resulting from a
potential settlement claim in respect of the non-controlling
interests. The value of the settlement claim rose by

EUR 0.6m in comparison to the prior year on account of
the trend in the training business and stable prospects for
the future. Other liabilities and accrued liabilities decreased
by EUR 1.3m.

Current liabilities came to EUR 24.3m as of the reporting
date (prior year: EUR 20.1m), mainly due to higher income
tax liabilities (up EUR 0.8m) and accrued liabilities for
bonuses (up EUR 2.6m).

Amounts stated in EUR m

01.01.-31.12.2017

01.01.-31.12.2016

Cash flows from operating activities 25,5 19.5
thereof working capital changes 0.4 -0.4
Cash flows from investing activities -2.2 -1.8
Cash flows from financing activities -20.4 -19.3
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3.0 -1.6
Cash at the beginning of the period 40.4 42.0
Cash at the end of the period 43.4 40.4
Composition of cash as of 31 December
Cash on hand and bank balances
(not subject to restraints on disposal) 43.4 40.4

Cash flows from operating activities

The cash flows from operating activities increased by
EUR 6.0m to EUR 25.5m in fiscal year 2017 (prior year:
EUR 19.5m).

Operating profit before working capital changes increased

by EUR 2.6m in 2017, mainly due to an increase of
EUR 1.6m in the profit attributable to non-controlling

interests recognized under liabilities and an effect of

EUR 0.6m from increased tax expenses. At EUR 1.0m,
write-downs were up around EUR 0.2m on the prior-year
level. Interest payments did not result in any net outflow of
cash. Non-cash finance costs stem from the EUR 0.6m
higher settlement liability to non-controlling interests of
Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss amounting to EUR 5.3m

(prior year: EUR 4.6m) and are recognized as liabilities
accordingly.
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Assets, liabilities and financial position of Amadeus FiRe Group

A EUR 0.4m improvement in working capital (prior year:
decrease of EUR 0.4m), due in particular to higher provi-
sions for bonuses, also had a positive effect. In addition,
cash outflows for income taxes paid were down EUR 2.6m
on the prior year in 2017.

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash outflows from investing activities amounted to

EUR 2.2m (prior year: EUR 1.8m). In addition to the
ongoing investment in furniture and fixtures and the IT
infrastructure, fiscal year 2017 saw further investments of
EUR 0.9m (prior year: EUR 0.8m) in connection with the
planned implementation of a new sales software program.

Interest income came to EUR 0.01m on account of the
historically low interest rates.

Cash flows from financing activities

In fiscal year 2017, the Amadeus FiRe Group remained
committed to its dividend policy and distributed the entire
prior year’s net retained profit. A dividend of EUR 19.0m
or EUR 3.66 per share was paid out to the shareholders of
Amadeus FiRe AG in May 2017. EUR 1.3m of net cash and
cash equivalents was also used to finance the payout to
the non-controlling interests of Steuer-Fachschule Dr.
Endriss. In the prior year, non-controlling interests recei-
ved EUR 1.0m in distributions.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents came to EUR 43.4m as of

31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: EUR 40.4m). The
share of total assets accounted for by cash and cash equi-
valents was therefore unchanged at 56%. The Amadeus
FiRe Group holds cash and cash equivalents in order to be
able to act quickly on investment projects. Cash and cash
equivalents are deposited in short-term and low-risk
investments.

The management board’s summary assessment of
business developments in the reporting year

A shortage of supply in qualified specialists is a good
market environment overall for the Amadeus FiRe Group.
The permanent placement service, in particular, was able
to benefit from this in the fiscal year and notched up
significant growth. In view of the fact that there were
three fewer working days available, the operating result
increased significantly. The sustained focus on sales
success factors and continual expansion of the sales
organization continue to form the basis for success.
Despite not hiring any new staff until later in the year
than planned, we largely met our recruitment targets
thanks to stepped up efforts. With its high equity ratio,
available cash and cash equivalents and thanks to the
implementation of the first part of the new sales software,
the organization is well equipped for future development.

The return on equity rose by 2.3 percentage points in the
fiscal year from 45.4% to 47.7%.

The Group’s economic situation can still be described as
very stable. At the time of preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the management board considers the
Group’s economic situation to be strong.
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5. Assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of Amadeus FiRe AG

In contrast to the consolidated financial statements based
on the IFRSs of the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as applicable in the EU, the separate financial
statements of Amadeus FiRe AG were prepared in compli-
ance with German legally required accounting principles
in accordance with the provisions of Secs. 242 to 256a and
Secs. 264 to 288 HGB [“Handelsgesetzbuch”: German
Commercial Code] and the special provisions of the AktG
[“Aktiengesetz”: German Stock Corporation Act].

The Company’s purpose is the leasing of staff to compa-
nies within the framework of the German Personnel
Leasing Act, permanent placement services for commercial
professions as well as personnel and management consul-
ting. The Company does not provide any tax or legal
services.

As was the case for the Group, the trend for business was
positive in 2017. Amadeus FiRe AG’s revenue rose 5.4%,
from EUR 140.6m in the prior year to EUR 148.1m.
Revenue from temporary staffing increased by EUR 2.9m
or 2.4% to EUR 124.4m. Revenue for permanent placement
rose by EUR 4.3 m to EUR 23.3 m, accounting for a 15.7%
share of total revenue. Accordingly, temporary staffing
was responsible for a share of 84.2%.

The cost of sales came to EUR 81.6m, an increase of
EUR 2.7m (prior year: EUR 78.9m).

Selling expenses came to EUR 33.9m, EUR 3.1m higher
than the EUR 30.8m recorded in the prior year. This
increase is principally due to higher personnel expenses.
The number of employees working in sales rose over the
course of the year. Rent and vehicle costs also contributed
to the increase in selling expenses.

General and administrative expenses were up 6.6% on the
prior year at EUR 8.5m.

Income from equity investments amounting to EUR 1.9m
was generated in fiscal year 2017 (prior year: EUR 7.0m).
Other income from a profit and loss transfer agreement
with Amadeus FiRe Services GmbH came to EUR 0.3m

(prior year: EUR 0.2m). Net interest income amounted to
EUR 1k (prior year: EUR 4Kk).

Income tax expenses in fiscal year 2017 totaled EUR 8.2m,
compared with EUR 7.9m in the prior year.

This resulted in a profit of EUR 18.3m for fiscal year 2017
(prior year: EUR 22.4m), a decrease of EUR 4.1m.

Total assets as of 31 December 2017 were up by EUR 1.1m
year on year to EUR 62.6m (prior year: EUR 61.5m). Non-
current assets of EUR 12.0m were up in comparison to the
prior year (EUR 11.0m).

Trade receivables rose by 6.8% or EUR 1.1m on the prior
year. Receivables from affiliates were flat year on year at
EUR 2.4m. Cash and cash equivalents came to EUR 29.5m
at the end of the reporting year (prior year: EUR 30.0m).

Equity accounted for 74.7% of the equity and liabilities
side of the balance sheet, compared with 77.3% in the
prior year. Overall, equity decreased from EUR 47.5m to
EUR 46.8m. The dividend payout proposed to the sharehol-
der meeting was EUR 0.7m higher than the profit for 2017.

At the time this report was prepared, the management
board also considered Amadeus FiRe AG’s financial perfor-
mance, financial position and assets and liabilities to be
very stable.
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6. Our employees

In the personnel services industry and in an educational
institution, the individual always takes center stage. The
Amadeus FiRe Group’s success story would not have been
possible without the contribution of many people over the
years. The Group’s employees are the foundation of its
positive performance and the most important element of a
successful future. This future depends on the hard work
and commitment of each and every employee.

The Amadeus FiRe Group had an annual average of

2,739 employees including trainees in 2017, which is an
increase of 67 on average compared with the prior year. As
of 31 December 2017, the Group had over 100 more
employees than a year earlier and a headcount of 2,846.
This encouraging development is attributable to a higher
number of external and internal staff.

On average, some 82% of our employees represented
Amadeus FiRe at our customers in 2017. They work there
on assignments as accountants, banking experts, assi-
stants, clerks in the fields of marketing, sales, HR, procure-
ment and administration or as IT specialists, acting thereby
as our best references. Their motivation and the professio-
nal qualifications of each and every one of them have a
direct and significant influence on customer satisfaction.

But our internal sales and administrative staff also under-
stand our customers’ needs and act accordingly. As such,
our HR consultants, recruiters, internal sales organization,

specialist consultants and instructors, as well as our
employees in accounting, HR, IT, marketing and all other
administrative functions are the foundation of our operati-
ons.

Amadeus FiRe offers its external staff many opportunities
to take the next step in furthering their careers and they
frequently find prospects of long-term employment at
companies that are customers of Amadeus FiRe. Amadeus
FiRe hired 2,719 employees for customer assignments over
the course of 2017 (prior year: 2,519 employees), opening
up career prospects for each of them.

At the end of the first half of the year, the number of staff
working on customer assignments was still slightly lower
than in the prior year. This changed over the second six
months, with the number of employees on customer
assignments increasing to a level clearly in excess of the
prior-year figure. The number of temporary workers as of
31 December 2017 was 2.7% higher than the prior-year
figure. The average age of temporary workers was 39 in
2017. 63% of external staff were female. The average
retention period for temporary workers at Amadeus FiRe is
between 13 and 14 months. Employees use temporary
work as a tool for their personal career development.
Undertaking temporary work at Amadeus FiRe is usually a
stepping stone along their individual career paths and not
a long-term individual working model. Only a small num-
ber of temporary workers remain with Amadeus FiRe for

Number of employees* March June Sept. Dec. (4} Personnel expenses (EUR k)
Employees on customer 2017 2,151 2,169 2,321 2,326 2,242 78,600
assignments 2016 2,173 2,201 2,264 2,264 2,226 75,900
Sales staff 2017 425 438 439 462 442 31,062
(internal staff) 2016 371 387 385 407 387 26,566
Administrative staff 2017 41 40 39 40 40 5,798
2016 44 42 42 41 42 5,596
Trainees 2017 13 13 18 18 16 218
2016 15 14 21 20 18 245
Total 2017 2,630 2,660 2,817 2,846 2,739 115,678
2016 2,603 2,644 2,712 2,732 2,673 108,307

*) This break down reflects only staff who where active in the fiscal year.
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several years. A large percentage of external employees
are taken on by the customer companies to which they are
assigned. In 2017, 45% (prior year: 46%) of Amadeus FiRe
employees switched from an ongoing assignment to a per-
manent position at the customer company. Former
employees who were able to advance their careers thanks
to Amadeus FiRe remain our important and valued ambas-
sadors in their new positions at our customers.

The recruitment of qualified specialists remains a major
challenge. The internet is still Amadeus FiRe’s most impor-
tant source of new recruits. In 2017, the proportion of
hires resulting from the placement of job advertisements in
various job portals and on Amadeus FiRe’s home page was
73% (prior year: 76%). A second, very stable long-term
source of recruitment are former employees and recom-
mendations that can be seen as confirmation of the appre-
ciation employees have for the Amadeus FiRe Group as an
employer. Amadeus FiRe considers itself to be a partner for

Our employees

the future development of its employees’ careers and offers
employees and candidates alike an ideal platform through
its portfolio of various personnel services and training
opportunities.

At year-end, 55 more employees worked in sales than at
the end of the prior year. The annual average number of
employees in the sales organization was 442. Overall, this
means that 14.2% more people were employed in sales
over the course of the year than in fiscal year 2016. The
average age was 32 years and was at the prior-year level.

In administration, the average number of employees
decreased slightly from 42 in 2016 to 40 in 2017.

Amadeus FiRe has been readily living up to its social
responsibility to open professional doors to young people
for many years. An average of 16 trainees were employed
during the reporting year (prior year: 18 trainees).
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7. Takeover-related information

The following information required under takeover law is
presented in accordance with Secs. 289a and 315a HGB.

Composition of subscribed capital

Subscribed capital corresponds to the parent’s capital stock
of EUR 5,198,237.00 and is divided into 5,198,237 no-par
value bearer shares. The shares are issued as global certifi-
cates. The articles of incorporation and bylaws preclude
any entitlement of shareholders to certification of their
shares. Pursuant to Art. 18 of the articles of incorporation
and bylaws of Amadeus FiRe AG, each share grants one
vote.

Equity investments exceeding 10% of voting rights

There are currently no equity investments that exceed 10%
of voting rights.

Appointment and removal of members of the
management board, amendments to the articles of
incorporation and bylaws

Members of Amadeus FiRe AG’s management board are
appointed and removed in accordance with Secs. 84 and
85 AktG in conjunction with Art. 6 of the articles of
incorporation and bylaws. Amendments to the articles of
incorporation and bylaws, with the exception of the
Company’s purpose, may be adopted by the shareholder
meeting by a simple majority of the capital stock represen-
ted on adoption of the resolution. According to Art. 14 (4)
of the articles of incorporation and bylaws, the supervisory
board is authorized to resolve amendments to the wording
of the articles of incorporation and bylaws.
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Authority of the management board
to buy back shares

By resolution of the shareholder meeting on 27 May 2015,
the management board is authorized to acquire treasury
shares. For further details, please refer to the section
“Capital stock” in the notes to the financial statements.

Compensation agreements in the event
of a takeover bid

A change of control agreement has been concluded with
Mr. Peter Haas, the CEO. In the event of a takeover, this
agreement provides for the possibility of premature
resignation from office and payment of compensation for
the remaining term of the contract, up to a maximum of
36 months. For more details, please see the section on
compensation.

Other disclosures under Sec. 289 a and Sec. 315 a HGB, in
particular under Nos. 2, 4, 5 and 8, are not applicable to
Amadeus FiRe AG.
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8. Statement on corporate governance pursuant to sec. 289a HGB

Responsible management focused on long-term value
creation governs the activities of Amadeus FiRe AG’s
management and oversight bodies. In this statement, the
management board reports on corporate governance, in its
own name and on behalf of the supervisory board,
pursuant to No. 3.10 of the German Corporate Governance
Code and in accordance with Sec. 289f (1) HGB.

Declaration of compliance issued by the management
board and supervisory board of Amadeus FiRe AG
with respect to the recommendations of the Commis-
sion on the German Corporate Governance Code in
accordance with Sec. 161 (1) AktG

The management board and supervisory board of Amadeus
FiRe AG declare that the Company has met, and continues
to meet, the recommendations of the German Corporate
Governance Code (as amended on 7 February 2017) pre-
sented by the Commission on the German Corporate
Governance Code with the following exceptions:

1. Departure from No. 4.2.2, paragraph 2

The supervisory board observes all statutory provisions
and recommendations of the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code pertaining to the appropriateness of the
management board’s compensation, but has not defined
senior management for Amadeus FiRe AG.

The management structure of Amadeus FiRe AG and
the Amadeus FiRe Group is characterized by its
relatively small management team, flat hierarchy and
decentralized organization. The supervisory board
believes that defining senior management would
neither reflect the actual structure of the Company nor
be useful from an operating or organizational per-
spective.

The supervisory board is confident in its ability to
ensure that the compensation of the management board
is appropriate without defining senior management.

2. Departure from No. 4.2.3, paragraph 4

The employment contract for management board
member Peter Haas does not impose any limit on the
severance payment to be paid out in the event that his
appointment to the board is terminated prematurely
(severance payment cap).

The supervisory board considers the severance payment
cap recommended by the Corporate Governance Code in
the event that appointments to the management board
are terminated prematurely to be problematic from a
legal perspective. If the premature termination is for
good cause for which the management board member is
responsible, said management board member has no
entitlement to the payment of severance. If the appoint-
ment to the management board is terminated without
good cause and not as provided for by the board mem-
bers’ contracts, the management board member in
question may receive the agreed compensation for the
remaining term of his contract, i.e., until the end of his
original appointment. The supervisory board considers
this provision to be appropriate as it is in agreement
with the interpretation of fixed-term contracts under
German civil law, whereby such contracts cannot be ter-
minated without good cause, meaning that the employee
is entitled to payment of the agreed compensation. At
the same time, it is uncertain from a legal perspective
whether the Company would be able to unilaterally
enforce a severance payment cap in a concrete case.

Despite the abovementioned concerns, the supervisory
board complied with the Code’s recommendations and
agreed a severance payment cap for the employment
contract with Mr. von Wilfing in force since 1 January
2016.

3. Departure from No. 4.2.5, paragraph 3 (first bullet
point)
The Company opted not to state the maximum and mini-

mum levels of compensation achievable by the manage-
ment board (in accordance with standard table 1).
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The supervisory board believes that stating the maxi-
mum and minimum levels of compensation in the
requested form — without the context of the compen-
sation rules behind it — is misleading and can lead to
inaccurate conclusions. The remuneration report of
Amadeus FiRe AG states that the variable remuneration
of the management board members has either been
revoked or it is subject to a cap. The supervisory board
is of the opinion that this statement is entirely suffi-
cient.

4. Departure from No. 5.4.1, paragraph 2, sentence 1

The Company has not set a time limit for membership
of the supervisory board. The personal and professional
qualifications of the candidates and members of the
supervisory board remain the determining factors,
regardless of the length of time they have served on the
supervisory board.

5. Departure from No. 5.3.3

The supervisory board has not formed a permanent
nomination committee for the purpose of electing
supervisory board members.

The supervisory board intends to form a nomination
committee as needed for the preparation of those share-
holder meetings in which the election of supervisory
board members shall be resolved.

Structure and oversight of Amadeus FiRe AG:

Shareholders and shareholder meeting

Amadeus FiRe AG’s shareholders exercise their codetermi-
nation and control rights at the Company’s shareholder
meeting, which is convened at least once a year. The
meeting is held within the first eight months of the fiscal
year at the Company’s registered office or in a city in
Germany that is home to a stock exchange. It may also
take place in a German city with a population of at least
250,000. The shareholder meeting resolves all matters

36

assigned to it by law (including appropriation of accumu-
lated profit, exoneration of the management board and
supervisory board members, election of supervisory board
members, appointment of auditors, amendments to the
articles of incorporation and bylaws, and capital in-
creases). Each share entitles the bearer to one vote.

Every shareholder who registers within the stipulated
timeframe is entitled to attend the shareholder meeting.
Shareholders not wishing to attend the shareholder
meeting in person can exercise their voting rights by
proxy through a representative, e.g., a bank, shareholder
association or other third party. In addition, the Company
allows its shareholders to exercise proxy voting by
authorizing a representative appointed by the Company to
exercise their voting rights in accordance with their
instructions before the shareholder meeting.

Prior to the shareholder meeting, the shareholders receive
the information prescribed by stock corporation law via
the annual report, invitation to the shareholder meeting
and various reports and sets of information required for
adopting the pending resolutions. These reports and this
information are also made available on Amadeus FiRe
AG’s website.

The next annual shareholder meeting is scheduled to take
place on 24 May 2018 in Frankfurt am Main.

Cooperation between the management board and
supervisory board and composition and work of com-
mittees

The members of the management board are appointed by
the supervisory board in accordance with Sec. 84 AktG.
Arts. 6 to 8 of the articles of incorporation and bylaws
govern the number of management board members as well
as the representation and management of the Company by
the management board, applying the rules of procedure as
adopted by the supervisory board. As of 31 December
2017, the management board comprises two members,
Peter Haas and Robert von Wilfing. The management
board regularly and comprehensively informs the super-
visory board and its committees of all matters relevant to
business planning and strategic development, business
performance and the situation of the Group, including
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risks and risk management, on an ad hoc and timely basis.
It consults with the supervisory board on the Company’s
strategy and regularly reports to the former on the status
of implementation.

The supervisory board has addressed the risk management
system, and in particular the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management system, in relation to the
financial reporting process in detail. For further informa-
tion, please see the section on risks in the management
report.

The supervisory board appoints the members of the
management board and advises and oversees their
management of the Company. The management board’s
rules of procedure provide, among other things, that the
management board may not carry out certain transactions
without approval from the supervisory board.

The supervisory board periodically deals with the issue of
potential conflicts of interest in its meetings and reviews
the independence of its members in accordance with the
principles of the German Corporate Governance Code.
Supervisory board members are required to disclose con-
flicts of interest to the supervisory board. No conflicts of
interest were disclosed by supervisory board members in
fiscal year 2017, this ensuring that the management board
receives impartial advice and oversight. There were no
consulting or other service agreements between super-
visory board members and the Company in the fiscal year.

The Company has taken out D&O insurance for Amadeus
FiRe AG’s management board and supervisory board
members. This includes a deductible for members of the
supervisory board and the management board.

Pursuant to the provisions of the MithestG [“Mitbestim-
mungsgesetz”: German Codetermination Act] and in
accordance with Art. 9 (1) of its articles of incorporation
and bylaws, Amadeus FiRe AG’s supervisory board
consists of 12 members, 6 of whom are elected by the
shareholder meeting and six who are elected by the
employees in accordance with the provisions of the
MitbestG. For elections of supervisory board members, the
nomination committee convened in advance for this
purpose makes sure that the supervisory board’s members
have the required expertise, skills and professional
experience and are sufficiently independent. Potential

Corporate governance statement

conflicts of interest and the Group’s business activities are
also taken into account.

No new members were elected to the supervisory board in
2017. The current 12 members of the supervisory board
are:

- Mr. Christoph Gross, Chairman

- Mr. Michael C. Wisser, Deputy Chairman

- Mr. Knuth Henneke

- Ms. Annett Martin, since 3 August 2017

- Dr. Ulrike Schweibert

- Mr. Hartmut van der Straeten

- Ms. Ulrike Bert, employee representative

- Ms. Sybille Lust, employee representative
(Ms. Angelika Kappe, employee representative
since 1 January 2018)

- Ms. Ulrike Sommer, employee representative

- Mr. Elmar Roth, employee representative

- Mr. Andreas Setzwein, employee representative

- Mr. Mathias Venema, employee representative

The following people left the supervisory board over the
course of the year:

- Ms. Ines Leffers, until 18 May 2017
- Ms. Sybille Lust, until 31 December 2017,
employee representative

No former management board member is currently on the
supervisory board, which is in compliance with the recom-
mendations of the German Corporate Governance Code
that no more than two former members of the manage-
ment board should be members of the supervisory board of
the Amadeus FiRe Group.

The supervisory board has set specific targets for the compo-
sition of its members: geographical presence through at least
10 German nationals, avoidance of potential conflicts of
interest by excluding members with executive positions at
competitors of the Company, its suppliers, customers or
shareholders as well as broad and comprehensive experience
and expertise in the Group’s field of business. These targets
have been taken into account in all nominations to date.

The following committees of the supervisory board were

formed with supervisory board members. The supervisory
board has not granted these committees any decision-
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making authority. The committees only work in an
advisory capacity and carry out preparatory work for the
full supervisory board. Members of the committee must
disclose conflicts of interest to the committee.

Accounting and audit committee

Members:

- Mr. Hartmut van der Straeten, Chairman
- Mr. Michael C. Wisser

- Ms. Ulrike Bert

- Mr. Andreas Setzwein

The accounting and audit committee consists of four
members. These comprise two supervisory board members
who represent the shareholders and two supervisory board
members who represent the employees. The accounting
and audit committee is responsible for issues related to
accounting, the review of the Company, group entities and
the Group, including monitoring the (group) financial
reporting process, the effectiveness of the internal control
system, the risk management system and the internal audit
system as well as the audit of the financial statements, in
particular the auditors’ independence and additional
services rendered by the auditors. The committee assesses
the auditors’ audit reports and reports its assessment of
audit report findings to the supervisory board, particularly
with regard to the Company’s future development.
Common committee functions include:

- Preparations for choosing the auditors, decisions on sup-
plementary audit areas, agreement on the audit fee and
the issuing of the audit engagement to the auditors

- The appraisal of the auditors’ findings and recommen-
dations set out in a management letter

- Preparations for the review of the annual and consolida-
ted financial statements by the supervisory board in-
cluding the relevant management reports based on the
results of the audit and supplementary remarks by the
auditor

- Review of the interim financial statements

The accounting and audit committee meets on a regular
basis before the interim financial statements are published
and after the annual financial statements and consolidated
financial statements have been presented by the manage-
ment board. The committee also meets as required. The
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chairman of the committee regularly reports on the com-
mittee’s work to the full supervisory board meetings.

The German Corporate Governance Code recommends that
the chairman of the accounting and audit committee have
specialist knowledge and experience in the application of
accounting principles and internal controls. This recommen-
dation has been implemented at Amadeus FiRe. Mr. van der
Straeten served for many years on management boards and
as a general manager of trading and manufacturing compa-
nies with responsibility for finance and accounting,
financing, tax and commercial management. As a result, he
has extensive knowledge and experience of internal con-
trols and the application of accounting principles.

Personnel committee

Members:

- Mr. Christoph Gross, Chairman
- Mr. Knuth Henneke

- Ms. Ulrike Sommer

- Mr. Michael C. Wisser

The committee has four members comprising the chairman
of the supervisory board, his deputy, a member of the
supervisory board representing the employees and a
member of the supervisory board representing the share-
holders. The personnel committee deals with personnel
matters for the management board members, including
long-term succession planning. The personnel committee
gives recommendations for the content of employment
contracts with management board members and their
compensation. Recommendations for current compensa-
tion are determined by systematically evaluating the
performance of the individual management board mem-
bers. The personnel committee also performs the functions
pursuant to Sec. 27 (3) in conjunction with Sec. 31 (3)
Sentence 1 MitbestG (mediation committee). The super-
visory board chairman also chairs the personnel commit-
tee.

The personnel committee convenes when required, particu-
larly before supervisory board meetings in which manage-
ment board issues are addressed. The chairman of the
committee regularly reports on the personnel committee’s
work and, where necessary, on the results of negotiations
to the full supervisory board meetings.
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Compensation of the management board and super-
visory board

Compensation of the management board and supervisory
board is presented in detail in the section on compensation
in the management report. The Company has decided to
summarize the information required by law, the informa-
tion recommended by the German Corporate Governance
Code and additional information on the compensation
system in a separate section on compensation. The
Company believes that this provides greater transparency
and comprehensibility. Please see section 11 on compensa-
tion for further details.

Share transactions by board members

Members of the management board and the supervisory
board are by law obliged pursuant to Sec. 15a WpHG
[“Wertpapierhandelsgesetz”: German Securities Trading
Act] to disclose the acquisition or disposal of shares in
Amadeus FiRe AG or related financial instruments where
the value of the transactions performed by the member
and related parties reaches or exceeds EUR 5,000 in any
one calendar year (directors’ dealings). In fiscal year 2017,
no shares were acquired or sold by members of the
management board or the supervisory board or by entities
closely related to the management board.

As of 31 December 2017, a total of 5,700 shares were held
by supervisory board members. The members of the
management board did not hold any shares. For a detailed
breakdown, please see note 40 in the notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

Policies promoting the participation of women in
management positions in accordance with Sec. 76 (4)
and Sec. 111 (5) AktG

The proportion of women at the two management levels
below the management board was 11% (as of 31 December
2017). The FuhrposGleichberG [“Gesetz fur die gleichbe-
rechtigte Teilhabe von Frauen und Ménnern an Fihrungs-
positionen in der Privatwirtschaft und im 6ffentlichen
Dienst”: German Act on the Equal Participation of Women
and Men in Management Positions in the Private Eco-
nomy and the Public Sector] required Amadeus FiRe AG

Corporate governance statement

for the first time to set targets for the proportion of
women on the management board and the subordinate
two management levels and to determine the date by
which the relevant proportion of women is to be achieved.
The management board set a target of at least 10% for the
first and second management levels below the manage-
ment board. This target was exceeded with a proportion of
11% as of the cut-off date 30 June 2017. The management
board adopted a new resolution with a minimum propor-
tion of 11% and an implementation deadline of midnight,
30 June 2022.

The Company’s supervisory board is composed of 12 mem-
bers. As of the balance sheet date, the supervisory board
was composed of five women and seven men. When
appointing men and women to its supervisory board, the
Company thus complied with the statutory minimum
quota of 30%.

Given the specific situation in the Company — in parti-
cular, the fact that the management board is currently
composed of two male members — the supervisory board of
Amadeus FiRe AG did not set a target that differs from the
current situation.

The management and supervisory boards will review the
quotas set as of 30 June 2022.

Risk management

Responsible management of the Company’s risks is inte-
gral to good corporate governance. Systematic risk
management as part of our value-based group manage-
ment ensures that risks are recognized and measured at an
early stage and that corresponding measures can be taken.
The Company’s risk management system is continuously
enhanced and adapted to the changing conditions. The
early warning system for the detection of risks is assessed
by the statutory auditors. The management board regularly
reports to the supervisory board on existing risks and their
development.

For further details on the Amadeus FiRe Group’s risk
management system, please see the section on risks, which
also contains the report on the internal control and risk
management system in relation to the (group) financial
reporting process.
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Transparency and communication

Amadeus FiRe informs capital market players and
interested parties about the Group’s financial situation and
new events regularly, and without delay. The annual
report, half-year financial report and quarterly statements
are published on time. Current events are announced in
press releases and — if prescribed by law — in ad hoc
reports. The Company keeps its shareholders regularly
informed about important dates through a financial calen-
dar which is published in the annual report and on the
Company’s homepage. All information is available in both
German and English and can be accessed on Amadeus
FiRe AG’s website at www.amadeus-fire.de/en/investor-
relations. This also allows private investors to obtain
timely information on current developments.

Financial reporting and audit

Amadeus FiRe AG prepares its consolidated financial
statements for the year and consolidated interim financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU.
Amadeus FiRe AG’s (separate) financial statements are
prepared in accordance with German commercial law
(HGB). The financial statements are prepared by the

9. Sustainability report

Amadeus FiRe publishes its sustainability report and non-
financial statement in accordance with Sec. 315b HGB in
its combined management report on the Company’s web-
site. The most recent sustainability report and non-finan-
cial statement can be accessed at www.amadeus-
fire.de/1/investor-relations/nachhaltigkeitsbericht.
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management board, audited by the statutory auditors and
reviewed by the supervisory board. The interim financial
statements are reviewed by the audit committee before
they are published.

The separate and consolidated financial statements of
Amadeus FiRe AG and the combined management report
of Amadeus FiRe AG and the Amadeus FiRe Group were
audited by Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungs-
gesellschaft, Eschborn/Frankfurt am Main. The auditor was
elected at the 2017 shareholder meeting.

Ernst & Young GmbH Wirtschaftpriifungsgesellschaft,
Eschborn/Frankfurt am Main, has agreed to immediately
inform the chairman of the audit committee of any reasons
that would prevent them from performing the engagement
or cast doubt on their impartiality during the audit, insofar
as these are not remedied with immediate effect. The audi-
tors are also required to report immediately on all material
findings and events arising during the audit that affect the
duties of the supervisory board. Furthermore, the auditors
must inform the supervisory board and state in the audit
report if they discover any facts in the course of the audit
that are inconsistent with the declaration of compliance
issued by the management board and supervisory board
pursuant to Sec. 161 AktG. The audits conducted in fiscal
year 2017 did not result in any such findings.
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10. Risks

The risk strategy is a component of our corporate strategy
and is aimed at safeguarding the continued existence of
our Company and systematically and continuously in-
creasing its business value. Amadeus FiRe’s management
board has established a monitoring system to allow risks
to be identified as early as possible. This system also serves
to mitigate financial losses by promptly initiating counter-
action. As part of the risk strategy, Amadeus FiRe’s oppor-
tunities are assessed on the one hand and its risks
evaluated on the other. An appropriate, transparent and
manageable level of risk is consciously taken on in core
areas of competency if an adequate return is likely.

Risk management

The management board has set forth in writing the specific
processes and definitions of the risk management system
at Amadeus FiRe, including uniform assessment methods.
The general managers of the subsidiaries, departmental
heads and other employees identify and assess risks at
prescribed intervals. The responsible member of the
management board reviews the risks and, if necessary,
assesses the correlation of individual risks in terms of the
risk for the Company as a whole. In addition, there is a
standardized, timely reporting function that allows the
Group to identify deviations and peculiarities at an early
stage. The management and supervisory boards review the
Group’s medium and long-term strategy annually and
evaluate the achievement of the defined steps outlined in
the strategy. In this way, the risk assessment is integrated
in the Company’s strategy, and opportunities and the rela-
ted earnings potential are identified. The supervisory board
reviews the internal control system at regular intervals.
Where it makes financial sense, risks are transferred to
insurers by concluding group insurance policies.

Risks

Risk areas

Significant risks for the Amadeus FiRe Group are as
follows:

General economic risks

The economic situation improved further in the reporting
year compared with the prior year. The German economy
is now showing strong growth, driven again in 2017 by
domestic demand from households. At the beginning of
2018, economic activity is likely to continue to flourish,
particularly as income prospects are still good and interest
rates remain low. Government consumption is expected to
rise again in 2018 and also contribute to GDP expansion.

The risks to stable economic growth and a robust labor
market as well as the risks related to an expected recession
in Germany described in the economic researchers’ and the
German government'’s forecasts are therefore considered
remote.

Uncertainty about the new government following the par-
liamentary elections in September 2017 poses a risk for the
German economy. An effective government with a stable
majority is a key stabilizing factor for the economy.
Further risks to the German economy can be found in
international trade. Brexit negotiations whose outcome is
currently still uncertain, structural problems in the Italian
banking sector and general political disintegration tenden-
cies could pose a threat to economic growth. It is also
unclear to what extent the US will continue to introduce
new customs duties and trade restrictions.

Due to their qualification levels, the refugees who have
arrived in the past three years will likely only be able to
participate in the workforce to a limited extent and will
thus place a significant strain on social welfare systems.

Transparency is low overall and it is difficult to forecast
how the various factors will develop. The underlying eco-
nomic and political situation appears to be very robust and
stable, however. Nonetheless, the overall performance of
the German economy could turn out to be more favorable
or less favorable than predicted in the opportunities and
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outlook section. One basic prerequisite for stable growth in
Germany is global economic growth of 3% or more.

Industry risks

In our experience, the temporary staffing sector is quickly
hit by cyclical fluctuations. This poses a risk for the
industry as it means that adverse economic or labor
market developments directly impact the sector.

In recent years, companies have come to value temporary
staffing as a short-term response tool to manage fluctuati-
ons in labor demand and also as a time and resource-
saving recruitment channel. As a result of this develop-
ment, temporary staffing has become more widely
accepted and appreciated. Employees value temporary
work as an alternative to short-term unemployment or as a
stepping stone along their career paths. The reputation of
temporary staffing has also improved in society. The col-
lective agreements for the temporary staffing industry
which have been in place since 2003, the changes to the
industry surcharge agreements introduced gradually since
November 2012 and the amendments to the German Per-
sonnel Leasing Act which entered into force in April 2017
have contributed to this development.

Despite these positive developments, customer companies’
economic situation and therefore general economic growth
poses an intrinsic risk to the future performance of the
industry and the Amadeus FiRe Group.

The temporary staffing industry is highly regulated and
draws a lot of attention from the world of politics and
society at large. The statutory and collective provisions
that have been introduced or amended have made
employee leasing more expensive and substantially
increased the administrative workload of temporary
staffing companies.

However, the surcharges on the collective wages are in
some cases lower for highly qualified professions, which
are the focus of the Amadeus FiRe Group, than for
industrial workers. There is also less reliance on a few,
large customers. Experience thus far has shown that the
Amadeus FiRe Group’s customers accept the higher cost
rates brought about by the industry surcharges. Proper
administrative processing is also guaranteed.
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When the law for the amendment of the German Personnel
Leasing Act on came into force on 1 April 2017, it introdu-
ced a maximum lease duration of 18 months as well as
equal pay for temporary workers after working for the
company to which they are assigned for 9 months. This
means that, after 9 months, a temporary worker should
receive the same salary as the permanent staff of the com-
pany to which he or she is assigned. In addition to higher
salary costs due to the pay rises set out in the collective
agreement from November 2016 currently in force, the
rules will lead to substantially higher administrative
expenses from 2018 since a peer salary will have to be
determined for every temporary worker. In addition, the
law reduces workforce flexibility.

The difficulty for the industry and the customer companies
posed by the fact that the wage components covered by
the term equal pay were not adequately defined by the
legislator was partly resolved through the addition of sup-
plements to the industry surcharge agreements. They
introduced an additional surcharge level in the pay system
set out in the collective industry surcharge agreements in
lieu of an “equal pay” salary. According to recent figures
from January 2018, the order books of the temporary staf-
fing industry have not declined significantly. Some custo-
mers have accepted and are adopting the new equal pay
system. However, there is also a relevant group of custo-
mer companies that categorically refuse to accept
assignments lasting longer than nine months. It is cur-
rently not possible to assess what course of action the
customer companies will pursue in the medium term. The
high administrative workload, the requirement to disclose
internal information used to calculate equal pay and yet
another increase in the cost of leasing staff are a risk
factor for long-term assignments.

The rule on the maximum lease duration does not affect
the business development of the Amadeus FiRe Group to
any large extent because the average assignment length
for a temporary worker at Amadeus FiRe is about eight
months.

As a rule, changes in labor legislation also affect the tem-
porary staffing industry. A reduction in protection from
dismissal or similarly far-reaching measures could have an
immediate and dramatic impact on companies’ business
volumes. However, there is currently no indication of any
plans to fundamentally change the existing arrangements.
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It is impossible to assess the potential impact of any such
future changes on the industry, as this would depend on
the specific details.

Economic trends play a critical role in the training sector,
particularly in the corporate customer business. A com-
pany’s investment in training for employees depends
heavily on its general financial position and performance.
For business with private individuals, developments on the
labor market are important. Private individuals feel less
pressure to enhance their skills when the situation on the
labor market is good and they are in a secure job. On the
other hand, such people are more willing to personally
invest in costly training.

Legal risks

Changing legal risks arise for the Amadeus FiRe Group
because it operates in an environment highly regulated by
laws. Aside from the legal requirements arising for the
Group from its stock exchange listing, further legal factors,
particularly from the area of employee leasing, play an
important role. These include, in particular, adherence to
the sometimes complex underlying legal framework ari-
sing from the German Personnel Leasing Act, German tax
law and from collective wage agreements.

The Amadeus FiRe Group has set up an internal audit
function charged with regularly monitoring compliance
with the various legal provisions, the relevant industry
collective wage agreement for employee leasing and the
collective surcharge agreements as well as compliance
with the Group’s internal policies. Although staff regularly
receive additional advisory services from external experts
and attend training sessions covering the relevant subjects
(such as collective bargaining and labor law, the AGG
[“Allgemeines Gleichbehandlungsgesetz”: German Anti-
Discrimination Act], social security law (pseudo self-
employment, etc.)), infringements of collectively bargained
provisions and/or labor law provisions cannot be ruled out
entirely in day-to-day business. The framework conditions
have been changed and revised so often — note in particu-
lar the legislative changes as of 1 April 2017 — that the
correct interpretation of the changes is not clear, even
among industry experts and specialist lawyers. However,
Amadeus FiRe believes the measures taken minimize the
legal risks.

Risks

Amadeus FiRe is not currently involved in any “signifi-
cant” legal actions. Any negative consequences resulting
from proceedings in which Amadeus FiRe is currently
involved are not expected to have a material impact on the
Amadeus FiRe Group’s earnings situation.

IT risks

IT security and IT risk management have been among
Amadeus Fire AG’s top priorities for many years. Internal
checks are regularly conducted to verify implementation of
the IT systems used on the basis of the specifications and
guidelines of the BSI [“Bundesamt fur Sicherheit in der
Informationstechnik”: German Federal Office for Informa-
tion Security] and to document compliance with the secu-
rity standards. In view of the current threats to the World
Wide Web, we are scrutinizing the existing security envi-
ronment and will expand and optimize it if appropriate.

Since the Company has locations across Germany but
stores its data centrally, it is essential that there are as few
disruptions to the line connection and as little downtime
as possible. The risk of downtime is countered by using a
high-quality and secure wide area network and redundant
data lines from various providers. High connection quality
is specified in service level agreements with tailored per-
formance standards. The transferred information is ade-
quately protected using the latest encryption technologies.

High-performance IT components with high redundancy of
the relevant systems are used within the secure data pro-
cessing center. Data loss is countered effectively by using
highly available and highly reliable servers as well as by
backing up data every day. Particular care is taken to pro-
tect the personal data of business partners and employees.
Moreover, the assignment of rights is restrictive and moni-
tored in order to preserve the confidentiality and integrity
of the information. If disruptions occur in primary IT
operations, a disaster recovery plan is in place that is
designed to ensure that data of the core systems that are
mirrored in a data processing center at another location
are made available after tolerable periods of downtime.
There are no significant foreseeable IT risks at present.
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Financing risks

The Amadeus FiRe Group held cash and cash equivalents
amounting to EUR 43.4m as of 31 December 2017. These
funds form the basis for the solid financing of the
Company’s operations, the option to make further acquisi-
tions and potential share buy-backs. The Company does
not have any liabilities to banks or financial instruments.
There is no material currency risk due to the fact that the
Company’s operations are in Germany. No financing or
default risks are discernible at present.

Personnel risks

Due to its business purpose of the Amadeus FiRe Group, it
has a continuously high need for qualified professionals
and executives, both to work in-house and as temporary
employees. Having the required number of qualified
employees at all times where possible is essential both for
ongoing business and for future growth.

As part of its business policy, Amadeus FiRe pursues a
restrictive hiring policy in terms of the qualifications of its
prospective employees. The current shortage of professio-
nals and executives and a low rate of unemployment make
it difficult to recruit suitable staff. This is also reflected by
the fact that the planned number of internal sales staff was
only achieved toward the end of the reporting year. The
excess demand on the labor market is expected to continue
in 2018 and recruiting opportunities will be unlikely to
improve as a result. Any further tightening of the labor
market would pose a potential risk for planned business
activities.

In a bid to attract employees and retain existing staff in the
long term, the Amadeus FiRe Group offers attractive
working conditions and salaries, tailored personnel
development and conducts extensive recruitment activities.
These efforts are designed to reduce the turnover risk and
the risk of a lack of qualified staff. The Amadeus FiRe
Group has given highest priority to human resources as a
risk area.

44

Overall risk assessment by company management

Assessing the overall risk situation involves a consolida-
ted examination of all individual risks and areas of risk.
The Amadeus FiRe Group’s risk environment did not
change significantly in comparison to the prior year
during the reporting period. From a current perspective,
there are no identifiable risks that could jeopardize the
ability of the Amadeus FiRe Group or any of its segments
to continue as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management system in relation
to the (group) financial reporting process

Due to the fact that the parent company, Amadeus FiRe
AG, is a capital market-oriented company as defined by
Sec. 264d HGB, the key elements of the internal control
and risk management system in relation to the (group)
financial reporting process, which also includes the finan-
cial reporting processes of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements, must be described in
accordance with Secs. 289 (4) and 315 (4) HGB.

The greater goal of the accounting-related internal control
and risk management system implemented in the Amadeus
FiRe Group is to ensure the compliance of the financial
reporting so that the separate financial statements,
consolidated financial statements and group management
report conform to all relevant regulations.

In this context, the internal control system comprises all
policies and procedures introduced by management that
are designed to aid the organizational implementation of
management’s decisions in order to ensure the effective-
ness and efficiency of operations, the compliance and
reliability of internal and external financial reporting and
compliance with the legal provisions relevant to the
organization.

The risk management system comprises all organizational
policies and procedures aimed at identifying risks and
addressing risks that arise in the course of business. The
aim of the internal control system over financial reporting
is to implement controls to provide reasonable assurance
that a compliant set of separate and consolidated financial
statements can be prepared in spite of any identified risks.
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The Amadeus FiRe Group has the following structures and
processes in place for group financial reporting:

Amadeus FiRe uses a standardized group-wide approach to
monitor the effectiveness of its internal control system.
This approach includes a definition of the required
controls, which are documented using uniform specifica-
tions and regularly tested. The management board of
Amadeus FiRe AG is responsible for establishing and
effectively maintaining adequate controls over financial
reporting.

All entities included in the consolidated financial state-
ments are integrated into this system using a defined
management and reporting organization. The principles,
structures and procedures and the processes of the accoun-
ting-related internal control and risk management system
are outlined in the Company’s organizational instructions,
which are amended in line with internal and external
developments on a regular basis.

With respect to the group financial reporting process, we
consider those elements of the internal control and risk
management system to be significant that could have a
considerable impact on the information contained in and
the overall picture conveyed by the consolidated financial
statements and group management report. These include:

- Identification of the main risks and control areas relevant
for the group financial reporting process

- Monitoring controls for overseeing the financial repor-
ting process at the level of the management board and
the consolidated entities

- Preventive controls in finance and accounting and in the
Group’s physical operating processes, which generate
vital information for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and group management report

- Measures to ensure that financial reporting transactions
and data are processed using appropriate IT systems

- Measures to oversee the accounting-related internal con-
trol and risk management system, in particular by the
internal audit function

The design of the internal control systems in place was
regularly assessed in fiscal year 2017. The audit firm tested
the systems on a sample basis as part of the audit of the

Risks

financial statements. No separate external examination
was carried out as there were no indications that the inter-
nal control system was ineffective.

As the parent company of the Amadeus FiRe Group,
Amadeus FiRe AG is included in the group-wide accoun-
ting-related internal control and risk management system
described above. The above information is therefore also
generally applicable for the separate HGB financial state-
ments of Amadeus FiRe AG.
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11. Compensation

The section on compensation includes a summary of the
principles applied to setting the total compensation paid
to members of the management board of Amadeus FiRe
AG. It also describes the structure and amount of the
compensation paid to the management board members.
This section also sets out the principles applied to com-
pensation for the members of the supervisory board, and
the amounts involved. The section on compensation is in
line with the recommendations of the German Corporate
Governance Code. It meets the requirements of the appli-
cable provisions contained in Secs. 289a (2), 314 (1)

Nos. 6a and b, 315a (2) No. 2 HGB.

Basic structure of the compensation system for the
management board

Total compensation of the management board comprises a
fixed component, a performance-based management bonus
and fringe benefits, taking into account the respective
responsibilities of the management board members. The
structure of the management board’s compensation system
is discussed by the supervisory board as proposed by the
personnel committee and reviewed on a regular basis.

The fixed non-performance based component is paid on a

monthly basis as a basic salary. In addition, management
board members receive fringe benefits in the form of com-

Remuneration earned by management board members

pensation in kind, primarily the amounts recognized
under tax law for the use of company cars. The perfor-
mance-based management bonus essentially comprises
the earnings and growth-oriented bonuses. The earnings-
oriented bonus is calculated pro rata based on EBITA for
the respective fiscal year. The growth-oriented bonus is
calculated based on the increase in EBITA relative to an
EBITA “high water mark” or highest figure attained to
date. Negative performance in a fiscal year is reflected in
the amount of variable compensation and can result in
claims to management bonuses for the respective fiscal
year being lost entirely.

The management board members also have a potential
entitlement to remuneration under a “Long Term Incen-
tive” (LTI) plan aimed at achieving a long-term and
sustainable increase in EBITA over the term of their
employment contracts. A potential entitlement under the
LTI does not arise until the end of the term of the respec-
tive management board member contract. If an entitle-
ment under the LTI is expected based on the current busi-
ness plans, this is calculated and a provision is set up to
cover a later disbursement of the accrued entitlement.

The management bonus amount is regulated in the
management board employment contracts depending on
the respective responsibilities of the management board
members.

2017 Fixed compensation Management Other LTI*
Amounts stated in EUR k bonuses compensation

Peter Haas 610 1,549 19 400
Robert von Wiilfing 234 444 18 105
Total 844 1,993 81 505
2016

Peter Haas 600 1,401 22 400
Robert von Wiilfing 234 409 14 97
Total 834 1,810 36 497

*) The amounts accrued during the year for a later due date are not discounted here.
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Compensation

2017 Fixed compensation ~ Management Other LTI*
Amounts stated in EUR k bonuses compensation

Peter Haas 610 1,401 19

Robert von Wiilfing 234 409 18

Total 844 1,810 37

2016

Peter Haas 600 1,361 22

Robert von Wiilfing 234 344 14

Total 834 1,705 36

*) The amounts accrued during the year for a later due date are not discounted here.

Other compensation includes fringe benefits such as com-
pany cars and accident insurance. There were no additio-
nal compensation components such as pension or benefit
commitments or third-party benefit plans for fiscal year
2017.

The Company also has a change of control clause in place
with Mr. Haas. In the event of a change of control, Mr.
Haas is entitled, within a certain timeframe, to prematu-
rely resign from office and terminate his employment
contract. If this right is exercised, the Company must pay
the contractually agreed gross compensation and a 100%
bonus for the remaining term of the contract, up to a
maximum of 36 months from the date on which the
termination takes effect.

Supervisory board compensation

The compensation of the supervisory board is determined
by the shareholder meeting and is governed by Art. 13 of
the articles of incorporation and bylaws. The compensa-
tion paid to the supervisory board was most recently
amended at the 2014 annual shareholder meeting, and the
articles of incorporation and bylaws were amended accor-
dingly. This compensation is based on the functions and
responsibilities of the members of the supervisory board.
Each member of the supervisory board receives annual
compensation of EUR 20,000, the chairman of the super-
visory board receives double this amount and the deputy
chairman one and a half times. Supervisory board
members who were only on the supervisory board for part
of the fiscal year receive prorated compensation. Starting
from the sixth supervisory board meeting in a given fiscal
year, each member of the supervisory board receives a per-
meeting fee of EUR 500.

Additional compensation is paid for chairing and sitting
on supervisory board committees. The chairman of a com-
mittee receives EUR 8,000, the chairman of the accounting
and audit committee and the chairman of the standing
committee (which is currently not established) each receive
EUR 10,000 and members of committees receive EUR 5,000
for each full year of membership or chairmanship. If a
supervisory board member does not attend meetings of the
supervisory board or committees of which he or she is a
member, one third of his or her total compensation is
reduced in proportion to the ratio between the total
number of meetings of the supervisory board or commit-
tees of which he or she is a member and the meetings that
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Compensation
the supervisory board member did not attend. Out-of- The members of the supervisory board received the fol-
pocket expenses incurred by supervisory board members in lowing specific compensation in 2016:
the course of their duties are reimbursed. No variable com-
pensation is paid to supervisory board members. Amounts stated in EUR k Supervisory board Committee ~ Per-meeting
compensation  compensation fee
The members of the supervisory board received the fol- Mr. Christoph GroR 37.8 7.6 0.0
lowing specific compensation during the reporting year: Mr. Michael C. Wisser 29.0 9.7 0.0
Ms. Ines Leffers 12.4 0.0 0.0
Amounts stated in EUR k Supervisory board Committee  Per-meeting (from May 2016)
compensation  compensation fee Ms. Dr. Ulrike Schweibert 12.4 0.0 0.0
Mr. Christoph GroR 400 8.0 0.0 (from May 2016)
- - Mr. Dr. Karl Graf zu Eltz 7.7 0.0 0.0
Mr. Michael C. Wisser 29.0 10.0 0.0 (until May 2016)
Ms't,'l":/ls Le;fgﬁ 76 0.0 0.0 Mr. Dr. Arno Frings 77 0.0 0.0
(unti ay. ) . (until May 2016)
Ms. Dr. Ulrike Schweibert 20.0 0.0 0.0
Ms. Annett Martin 8.3 0.0 0.0 Mr. Knuth Henneke 20.0 5.0 05
(from August 2017) Mr. Hartmut van der Straeten 20.0 10.0 0.5
Mr. Knuth Henneke 20.0 5.0 0.0 Ms. Ulrike Bert 20.0 5.0 0.5
Mr. Hartmut van der Straeten  20.0 10.0 0.0 Ms. Ulrike Sommer _ 200 5.0 0.5
Ms. Ulrike Bert 20.0 50 0.0 (formerly Hosl-Abramowski)
Ms. Ulrike Sommer 20.0 5.0 0.0 Ms. Silke Klarius (until May 2016) 7.7 1.9 0.0
(formerly Hosl-Abramowski) Ms. Sibylle Lust 18.9 0.0 0.0
Ms'tf'gy"e “;St 017 200 00 00 Mr. Elmar Roth 20.0 0.0 05
(until Dezember ) Mr. Andreas Setzwein 124 31 0.0
Mr. Elmar Roth 20.0 0.0 0.0 (from May 2016)
Mr. Andreas Setzwein 20.0 5.0 0.0 Mr. Mathias Venema 20.0 0.0 05
Mr. Mathias Venema 20.0 0.0 0.0 265.8 472 3.0
264.9 48.0 0.0
In addition to the supervisory board compensation listed
above, additional payments were made to the supervisory
board’s employee representatives as part of their employ-
ment in fiscal year 2017 and recognized as an expense.
The amount of the payments depends on the applicable
salary grades in the Company. Supervisory board members
did not receive any further compensation or benefits for
individual services rendered in the reporting period, in
particular advisory and referral services.
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11. The Amadeus FiRe share

Performance of the Amadeus FiRe share
in fiscal year 2017

Amadeus FiRe AG shares have been listed on the Regula-
ted Market of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange since 4 March
1999 and admitted to the Prime Standard since 31 January
2003. Amadeus FiRe AG was listed on the SDAX from

22 March 2010 to 18 September 2017. Due to new listings
of larger and more cash-strong companies in the MDAX
and SDAX as part of the regular review of the SDAX in
September 2017, the share of Amadeus FiRe AG was
removed from the index.

Following a positive stock market development toward the
end of 2016, the DAX continued its upward trajectory at
the beginning of 2017 to reach a record 12,938 points in
June. This was due to a good domestic economy in
Germany, an upswing in the global economy during 2017
and the expansionary monetary policy still pursued by the
central banks. Uncertainty about Brexit, the tense relation-
ship with North Korea or the crisis in Spain due to

The Amadeus FiRe share

Catalonia’s independence movement were not an issue and
saw the DAX decline only slightly to just under 12,000
points in September. Shortly afterwards, the DAX climbed
to its all-time high of 13,518 points on 7 November 2017,
moving sideways for the remainder of the year at between
12,900 and 13,200 points. The share prices of the compa-
nies listed on the SDAX developed less favorably in the
first half of the year and then did much better than those
of DAX companies from mid-2017 to the end of 2017. At
year-end, the SDAX was up 23.3% on the prior year and
the DAX up 13.1%.

The price of the Amadeus FiRe share fluctuated in 2017. In
the first quarter, the share price moved almost in line with
the DAX and SDAX indices. It fell sharply after the divi-
dend was paid out on 18 May 2017. The price bottomed
out at EUR 71.50 at the beginning of September. From
September until the end of the year, the share moved side-
ways, fluctuating at between EUR 82.00 and EUR 71.50.
The share price increased by 5.8% over the year as a
whole.

Indexed share price performance
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The Amadeus FiRe share | Subsequent events

Key figures for the Amadeus FiRe share

in EUR 2017 2016
Market price (XETRA closing price, Frankfurt)

High 8735  75.20
Low 70.23 54.40
Year-end 77.21 73.42
Trading volume on German exchanges 2,234 2,287
(in thousands of units)

Number of shares outstanding (in thousands) 5,198 5,198
Stock market capitalization (31 December, in EUR m) 401.0 381.6
Earnings per share 3.96 3.66

Amadeus FiRe AG’s shareholder structure as of
31 December 2017

According to the definition of Deutsche Borse AG, 100% of
the shares of Amadeus FiRe AG are in free float. About
57% of the known shareholdings are held by foreign
institutional investors, and around 43% by institutional
investors in Germany. As the shares of Amadeus FiRe AG
are bearer shares and the reporting threshold under the
WpHG [“Wertpapierhandelsgesetz”: German Securities
Trading Act] is 3%, the ownership of a sizable portion is
unknown.

13. Subsequent events

No significant events have occurred since 31 December
2017 that are expected to have a material impact on
Amadeus FiRe’s assets, liabilities, financial position and
financial performance.
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Investor Relations

The Amadeus FiRe Group’s management board and
investor relations department maintain an ongoing dialog
with existing and potential investors, stock market
analysts and banks. The fundamental principle governing
communication with market participants is that all infor-
mation must be communicated frankly, transparently and
without delay. Reporting is as active and comprehensive as
possible in order to allow all participants in the capital
market to make as realistic an assessment as possible of
the Company’s performance. As well as providing regular
reports on the current state of business, strategic direction
and objectives of the Amadeus FiRe Group, the manage-
ment board presented the Company at two roadshows in
Germany and several other European countries. In addi-
tion, meetings were held with national and international
investors and analysts to communicate the current
situation and the Company’s business development. As the
prior year, Amadeus FiRe’s stock was analyzed and evalua-
ted by M.M. Warburg, Bankhaus Lampe and Montega AG
in 2017.

The Company’s annual and quarterly reports, capital
market dispatches, analyst assessments, online stock
market information and information on the annual general
meeting are available via the Group’s investor relations
homepage (www.amadeus-fire.de/en/investor-relations).
Amadeus FiRe ensures that up-to-date and extensive
information is made available and that the Company can
be contacted at any time.
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14. Opportunities and outlook

Focus of the Amadeus FiRe Group for the next
fiscal year

The Amadeus FiRe Group will continue to offer the
services temporary staffing, permanent placement, interim
and project management and training. It will retain its
basic focus on commercial areas, concentrating on finance
and accounting as well as IT services. There are no plans
to expand into other countries.

Overall economic outlook

Economic forecasts for 2018 unanimously predict conti-
nued upward global economic growth. The International
Monetary Fund forecasts global economic growth of 3.9%
next year, which is slightly above the figure for 2017. The
global economic situation is volatile and uncertain in light
of low interest rates, expansionary monetary policy and
the effects of factors including Brexit and upcoming
elections in Europe.

On a positive note, tax reforms in the US covering a period
until 2020 are expected to have a positive impact on glo-
bal economic growth in 2018. Emerging markets are also
expected to record another strong economic performance
in 2018 following growth in 2017. The main reason for
this positive development is the recovery in the oil price.

The IMF is forecasting 2.7% growth for the US in 2018.
For the second largest economy, China, the IMF’s forecast
is growth of 6.5%.

Attempts are likely to be made again in 2018 to jump-start
the economy using monetary policy. The European Central
Bank has extended its program of buying up government
bonds until the end of September 2018, albeit halving its
investment to EUR 30 b per month. The effects on the
growth of the global economy remain to be seen, particu-
larly considering the fact that the US Federal Reserve raised
its key interest rates three times in a row in 2017 with no
change in its policy expected under new leadership either.

On the back of high domestic demand and high exports,
real GDP growth in the eurozone of 2.2% is expected in
2018 compared with 2.4% in 2017.

Opportunities and outlook

Early indicators such as the ifo index or the purchasing
managers’ indices point to solid German economic growth
in 2018 as well. In its latest forecast, issued in January, the
IMF predicts growth of 2.3% in Germany in 2018, before
adjustment for calendar effects. There are no calendar
effects in 2018 since the total number of available working
days will be the same as in 2017. Deutsche Bundesbank
expects German real GDP to grow by 2.5% in 2018. As in
the past, this figure, which is also not adjusted for calen-
dar effects, is the figure on which the Amadeus FiRe Group
is basing its opportunities and outlook report.

In 2018, growth will be driven by household spending,
construction and government expenditure. In this connec-
tion, private consumption will benefit from record-high
employment, continuing real wage growth and low interest
rates. The rising oil price will have a slight dampening
effect. Housing construction will expand further in 2018. In
light of positive labor market and income prospects as well
as ongoing immigration, demand for residential property
remains high, in particular in large cities. Government
spending will increase again in 2018 with more asset pur-
chases and non-cash benefits for health and care in 2018.

Favorable export prospects, in particular exports to emer-
ging countries, point to a further increase in investments.
The increase in exports will also lead to higher capacity
utilization and, in turn, to additional investments. Funding
conditions for companies also remain favorable thanks to
stable interest rates.

Deutsche Bundesbank Forecast in % 2017 2018

Global economic growth (IMF forecast) 34 3.9
Utilization of real GDP
Household spending 1.6 1.7
Government spending 2.3 1.8
Gross capex 3.1 4.2
Exports 3.2 54
Imports 4.1 6.0

Contributions to GDP growth (in percentage points)

Final demand (Germany) 1.9 2.1
Changes in inventories 0.0 0.1
Net exports -0.1 0.2
German GDP (real) 1.8 2.5

Source: German Federal Statistical Office, International Monetary Fund (IMF), Deutsche Bundesbank
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Opportunities and outlook

A certain risk for the 2018 forecast can be seen in the
process currently underway to form a new government.

Risks to the 2018 forecast can also be found in internatio-
nal trade. The further development of the oil price, Brexit
negotiations between the United Kingdom and the Euro-
pean Union whose outcome is currently still uncertain,
structural problems in the Italian banking sector as well as
general political disintegration tendencies could pose a
threat to economic growth. The debate around the nuclear
deal with Iran is also a source of uncertainty, in particular
with regard to North Korea, which is continuing to make
progress on its own nuclear weapons program. The
response of the global economy to this uncertainty
remains to be seen. It is also unclear to what extent the US
will continue to introduce new customs duties and trade
restrictions.

The labor market is again expected to see a positive de-
velopment next year. While absolute employment is
expected to rise further, lower immigration levels, acute
labor shortages and an unfavorable outlook for German
demographics will have a negative impact and be respon-
sible for more muted growth over the next few years. The
baby boomers, i.e., those born between 1955 and 1965,
will cease pursuing active employment and go into retire-
ment in the coming years. This will likely exacerbate the
shortage of skilled labor long term.

The annual economic report by the German federal
government forecasts an annual average increase in people
in gainful employment of 490,000 for 2018 compared to
the prior year. The number of people in work is therefore
set to increase to over 44.5 million in 2018 as employment
growth continues apace.

Unemployment in 2018 is likely to be slightly lower than
the past year’s average of 5.7%. The number of people of
working age has increased as a result of immigration, but
a rising proportion thereof are expected to participate in
labor market policy measures and will therefore be re-
moved from the statistics. The number of people officially
registered as unemployed is therefore expected to decrease
somewhat in 2018. DIW (Berlin) expects an unemployment
rate of 5.5%.
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Industry performance

There will continue to be a strong correlation between the
market for employee leasing and the general economic
trend. This means that the forecast development of the
global and national economies and the performance of the
labor market will have a commensurate impact on the
market for employee leasing.

Experience has shown that demand in the industrial sector
is more directly and strongly affected by economic de-
velopments, while the qualified sector responds in a late-
cyclical manner.

The temporary staffing sector has become established as a
flexible employment model in recent years. Given the cur-
rent positive economic situation and the related increase in
demand from companies, there should still be potential for
growth. The 2.5% real growth in GDP forecast for 2018 is
likely to result in a further increase in demand in the tem-
porary staffing market.

The growing cost of temporary staffing services should
have an offsetting effect, however. Higher collectively
agreed compensation, further effects from industry sur-
charge agreements and the new statutory equal pay rules
have increased prices for temporary staffing in Germany.

From April 2018, the next phase of the increase in collecti-
vely agreed compensation under the temporary staffing
collective wage agreement will take effect (2.8% in the
West and 4.0% in the East).

The law for the amendment of the German Personnel
Leasing Act and other laws entered into force on 1 April
2017. This law provides for a maximum lease duration of
generally 18 months as well as equal pay for temporary
workers after working for the company to which they are
assigned for at least nine months. The equal pay provision
applies from January 2018 and the maximum lease dura-
tion from mid-2018. The introduction of the law will make
temporary staffing services more expensive in 2018 on the
one hand, and make it even harder for German companies
to achieve greater workforce flexibility on the other.

The difficulty for the industry posed by the fact that the
wage components covered by the term equal pay were not
adequately defined by the legislator was partly resolved
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through the addition of supplements to the industry sur-
charge agreements. They introduced an additional surcharge
level in the pay system set out in the collective industry
surcharge agreements in lieu of an “equal pay” salary. The
rule on the maximum lease duration does not affect the
business development of the Amadeus FiRe Group to any
large extent because the average assignment length for a
temporary worker at Amadeus FiRe is about eight months.
According to recent figures from January 2018, the order
books of the temporary staffing industry have not declined
significantly. The market conduct of the customer compa-
nies is thus unchanged as yet. While the long-term effects
of equal pay remain to be seen, we expect there to be a
negative, albeit not so significant impact on business. The
new rules will also result in a much heavier workload inter-
nally as we work to ensure correct processing and advise
and support our customer companies.

The industry surcharges that were renegotiated in early
2017 and will affect all wage groups from the second half
of 2018 will likely amplify the collectively agreed increase
in wages for temporary staffing even further. Following
the introduction of the statutory equal pay rule, an addi-
tional surcharge level was installed in the pay system set
out in the collective industry surcharge agreements in lieu
of an “equal pay” salary. This new surcharge level nor-
mally applies after a contractual term of 15 months. With
this additional surcharge level, surcharges of up to 67% on
collectively agreed pay are now possible. However, the
impact should be less pronounced for more qualified
employees because the surcharges are higher for the lower
wage groups (representing less qualified employees) than
for the higher groups. On account of this, as well as the
industry structure of Amadeus FiRe’s customers and the
small number of employees in the lower wage groups, the
market segment of relevance to Amadeus FiRe is expected
to be less severely affected.

The supply side is still dominated by the major challenge
of recruiting new employees due to the lack of availability.
Employment prospects for qualified staff will continue to
be good due to excess demand on the labor market and the
trend toward hiring permanent employees. Given the
demographic trend in Germany, qualified personnel will
become scarcer in the long term and, as a result, the
number of workers and qualified specialists available will
be limited further. These factors make it more difficult to
attract and hire candidates for temporary staffing.

Opportunities and outlook

There will be 250 chargeable days in 2018, the same
number as in 2017. No arithmetic effect on revenue and
earnings is therefore expected in this regard in 2018.

No growth in the number of people working in employee
leasing arrangements is expected for the whole temporary
staffing market due to the robust, competitive labor
market, price increases and effects of the law for the
amendment of the German Personnel Leasing Act and
other laws. The price rises should result in minor market
growth however. According to a survey conducted by the
Linendonk market research institute in 2017, temporary
staffing agencies predict market growth of just 1.5% in
2018. Growth in Amadeus FiRe’s core market for qualified
specialists compared to 2017 is not expected due to the
trend toward permanent employment and the tight appli-
cant market.

2018 should again present good opportunities for the per-
manent placement service. Experience has shown that a
short supply of qualified staff increases the willingness of
companies to invest in acquiring suitable personnel. The
shortage in Germany in the area of qualified professionals
and executives is especially pronounced. The trend toward
permanent contracts will continue in a bid to secure talent.
Given these factors, the permanent placement market
should perform very well in 2018. Growth in the region of
10% is expected.

The overall performance of the economy has only a slight
impact on interim and project management. A greater
number of restructuring and cost-cutting projects are car-
ried out in recessionary phases, while staff are needed for
the more traditional interim management projects in reco-
very phases. In Amadeus FiRe’s assessment, demand for
interim and project management on the extremely compe-
titive market in Germany was comparatively unchanged in
2017. A similar pattern is expected for 2018.

Demand for training in the fields of tax, finance and
accounting is expected to be stable in 2018. The overall
general trends at work in the field of training are demo-
graphic change, a shift toward academic qualifications,
insufficient readiness for the world of work (inadequate
qualifications after completing formal training) and the
increasing mobility of media. The projected demographic
change (shortage of specialists) is expected to lead to a fall
in demand for basic training on the one hand but a rising
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Opportunities and outlook

demand for further training aimed at the later stages of
people’s careers on the other. Attractive training packages
for life-long learning could therefore become a crucial tool
for employer branding. The trend toward more academic
qualifications in training is also continuing in Germany,
which is reflected in the fact that the number of people
starting university is increasing relative to the number of
people joining the workforce. At the same time, there is an
increasingly urgent need to develop suitable bridging
courses to give graduates who are becoming less equipped
for the world of work more practical professional training.
Finally, the meteoric rise of mobile media is influencing
the way training is provided. Solutions must be developed
to provide training rapidly and flexibly, without being tied
to particular locations or times, as part of a digitalization
strategy that is appropriate to the target group.

No wide-spread changes in the fields of tax or accounting
are anticipated on a national level in 2018. However, a
high level of new topics could emerge in the wake of the
coalition talks, which are still ongoing.

The special market for training in the area of international
financial reporting standards (IFRSs, US GAAP) is expected
to be flat or even contract in 2018 due to decreasing
demand.

Forthcoming succession arrangement on the manage-
ment board of Amadeus FiRe AG

Mr. Peter Haas, CEO of Amadeus FiRe AG, has decided not
to renew his management board contract which is due to
expire as of 31 December 2018. Peter Haas has been a
member of the management board of Amadeus FiRe AG
for 18 years and CEO since 2008. He made a significant
contribution to the successful development of the Com-
pany during this period. The long-term plan for his succes-
sion, which was initiated jointly by the supervisory board
and management board, will be implemented in due course
and was officially announced and publicized on

23 October 2017.

Mr. Robert von Wulfing will be appointed as CEO with
effect from the date on which Mr. Haas leaves the manage-
ment board. Mr. von Wulfing has been a member of the
management board of Amadeus FiRe AG since 2012 and is
currently Chief Financial Officer and responsible for the
training segment. Mr. Dennis Gerlitzki will be appointed as
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a new member of the management board, likewise effec-
tive as of the date on which Mr. Haas leaves the board. As
Chief Operations Officer, Mr. Gerlitzki will be responsible
for the personnel services segment. Mr. Gerlitzki has
worked successfully for Amadeus FiRe in various roles for
14 years and has been responsible for a large number of
Amadeus FiRe’s branches in Germany in his role as
regional director since 2008.

Both men can look back on longstanding and close
working relationships with Mr. Haas on operational as well
as strategic topics at first-tier management level and have
the full confidence of Mr. Haas and the supervisory board.
Their high level of expertise and experience are an excel-
lent basis for continuing the successful management of the
Company into the future.

Anticipated sales and earnings development

Another positive economic situation in Germany is fore-
cast for 2018. Confidence in the German economy is at a
similar level as it was in 2017. In January 2018, the ifo
Business Climate Index improved from 117.2 to a level of
117.6 points.

A differentiated view of the personnel services segment
should be taken and, as already mentioned, opportunities
for growth in this segment are good overall, in line with
the labor market. High demand for specialists combined
with short supply is favorable for Amadeus FiRe’s business
model.

Full staffing levels are planned at the branches for fiscal
year 2018. Efforts will be undertaken to create additional,
specialized teams to selected locations. The aim is to
further strengthen the sales organization long term in
order to successfully penetrate the regional markets and
further improve Amadeus FiRe’s market position.

The implementation of the next part of the new sales soft-
ware as well as stepping up recruitment activities and
strengthening recruitment resources will be important
areas targeted by investment in 2018.

The additional expenses for expanding the sales organiza-
tion will arise for the creation of new jobs, the full-year
salaries for positions which were vacant in the past year as
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well as salary adjustments to safeguard competitiveness.
Additional expenses of approximately EUR 3.8m are
planned for this for fiscal year 2018.

The second part of the sales software is also scheduled to
be implemented in 2018 following the successful introduc-
tion of the applicant management module of the new sales
software in 2017. We plan to roll out customer manage-
ment as the second sales software module in the third
quarter of 2018. The expected additional costs for fiscal
year 2018 are pegged at EUR 0.9m.

The volume of orders in the temporary staffing industry
falls at the beginning of the year due to seasonal factors.
In 2018 there was an additional one-time effect from the
new equal pay rule. Following enactment as of 1 April
2017 of the new legislation requiring equal pay after nine
months, all orders that were commenced prior to 1 April
2017 were affected at the end of the year. In line with our
expectations, the adjustment at the start of 2018 was
stronger than in the prior year due to this special effect.
Nonetheless, the number of orders at the beginning of
January was slightly above the prior-year level. Amadeus
FiRe expects a moderate increase in revenue from tempo-
rary staffing in the course of the year, due in part to the
abovementioned investments in personnel for the sales
organization.

After the significant calendar effect in 2017, there are no
arithmetical effects on revenue and earnings in fiscal year
2018 due to a greater or small number of chargeable days.

The permanent placement service performed unexpectedly
well in the fiscal year. Following considerable growth in
recent years, we anticipate a further slight increase in
revenue in 2018.

Assuming that the market for interim and project manage-
ment continues its stable development, the Amadeus FiRe
Group is also planning to boost its revenue from interim
and project management services and to expand its market
position again slightly. After the service underperformed in
2017, we intend to enhance our focus on this area and
facilitate a turnaround.

Overall, provided the customer companies do not alter
their behavior significantly in response to the equal pay
rules, we expect revenue to increase and EBITA to be on

Opportunities and outlook

a par with the prior year in the personnel services
segment.

We do not expect to see an especially high level of new
topics in Amadeus FiRe’s training segment in 2018 due to
changes in the regulatory environment arising from the
current government talks. Further market share will be
gained thanks to the expansion of sales activities and the
ever broader range of courses and seminars the Group
offers in economic centers where it has its own training
premises and employees. This should result in a high
single-digit percentage increase in training revenue and a
similar increase in EBITA.

In fiscal year 2018, the Amadeus FiRe Group aims to
further grow its revenue and to exceed this year’s EBITA of
EUR 32.3m. Despite the abovementioned negative earnings
effects, the management board expects EBITA to increase
by approximately EUR 0.5m. We assume that the planned
investments in the expansion of business operations will
be executed successfully.

To improve its market position in the training segment, the
Group may consider acquisitions in addition to the plan-
ned organic growth.

The above forecasts apply without restriction to Amadeus
FiRe AG since that company’s portfolio of services mainly
comprises temporary staffing and permanent placement.

Based on the positive result for fiscal year 2017, the

management board expects to be able to pay out a
dividend again in 2018.
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Overview of the accuracy of the forecasts made in the outlook section of the 2016 Annual Report

Forecast made in the 2016 Annual Report Current status (2017)
Global economy
Global economic growth 3.4% 3.7%
Eurozone growth 1.6% 2.4%
German economy
GDP (real) 1.8% 2.2%
Utilization of real GDP
Household spending 1.6% 2.0%
Government spending 2.3% 1.4%
Gross capex 3.1% 3.0%
Exports 3.2% 4.7%
Imports 4.1% 5.2%
Contributions to GDP growth (in percentage points)
Final demand (Germany) 1.9% 1.4%
Changes in inventories 0.0% 0.1%
Net exports -0.1% 0.2%
German labour market
Net immigration + 206,000 N/A
Average unemployment figure ,likely to fall short of the 2016 level 2,533,000
(<2.69 million people) on average in 2017
Industry performance
Temporary staffing market ,,market growth of 2.6%" 4-5%*
Temporary staffing market for commercial specialists ,»,market volume on a par with 2016* N/A
Permanent placement market ,,market growth of around 10%"* ,.developed well“*
Interim and project management market ,.slight market growth* N/A
Training market ,.unchanged compared to 2016 ,»Stable development*
Performance of Amadeus FiRe in terms of unit sales and earnings
Services
Revenue, temporary staffing ,,moderate revenue growth" (mor than EUR 121.3m) EUR 124.2m
Revenue, permanent placement ,,moderate revenue growth" (mor than EUR 21.7m) EUR 29.0m
Revenue, interim and project management  ,,moderate revenue growth" (mor than EUR 9.6m) EUR 9.2m
Revenue, training ,,slight increase* (more than EUR 20.7m) EUR 22.1m
Group as a whole
Total revenue ,,moderate revenue growth™ (mor than 173.3m) EUR 184.5m
Group EBITA Lincrease of EBITA of about 2% (30.7 Mio.)* EUR 32.3m

*) Current estimate of Amadeus FiRe

15. Responsibility statement

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting frame-
work, the consolidated financial statements provide a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and financial performance of the Group and that the group

Frankfurt am Main, 1 March 2018

S 22 )

Peter Haas Robert von Wiilfing
CEO CFO
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management report gives a true and fair view of the de-
velopment of business, including the operating result and
the Group’s position, and also describes the principal
opportunities and risks relating to the expected future
development of the Group.
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Consolidated income statement — twelve months of fiscal year 2017

Amounts stated in EUR k Notes 01.01.-31.12.2017 01.01.-31.12.2016
Revenue 184,525 173,295
Cost of sales -102,042 -97,465
Gross profit 82,483 75,830
Selling expenses -41,550 -37,646
General and administrative expenses -8,801 -8,349
Other operating income 224 205
Other operating expenses -37 -2
Profit from operations before goodwill impairment 32,319 30,038
Impairment of goodwill 0 0
Profit from operations 32,319 30,038
Finance costs -649 -597
Finance income 7 10
Profit before taxes 31,677 29,451
Income taxes -9,612 -8,990
Profit after taxes 22,065 20,461
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
recognized under liabilities -1,282 -1,320
Profit for the period 20,783 19,141
Attributable to non-controlling interests 213 139
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 20,570 19,002
Earnings per share, in relation to the profit of the period
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent
basic (euro/share) 3.96 3.66
diluted (euro/share) 3.96 3.66
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Consolidated statement of compehensive income —

twelve months of fiscal year 2017

Amounts stated in EUR k

01.01.-31.12.2017

01.01.-31.12.2016

Profit for the period 20,783 19,141
Other comprehensive income 13 0 0
Total comprehensive income for the period 20,783 19,141
- Attributable to non-controlling interests 213 139
- Attributable to equity holders of the parent 20,570 19,002
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Consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2017

Amounts stated in EUR k Notes 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Software 14 3,971 3,009
Goodwill 14 6,935 6,935
Property, plant and equipment 15 1,677 1,510
Deferred tax assets 17 1,071 1,046
13,654 12,500
Current assets
Income tax credit 18 0 658
Trade receivables 18 20,420 18,604
Other assets 18 73 69
Prepaid expenses 19 467 467
Cash and cash equivalents 20 43,403 40,448
64,363 60,246
Total assets 78.017 72,746
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Subscribed capital 21 5,198 5,198
Capital reserves 23 11,247 11,247
Retained earnings 24 30,122 28,577
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 46,567 45,022
Non-controlling interests 558 369
47,125 45,391
Non-current liabilities
Liabilities to non-controlling interests 26 5,342 4,693
Other liabilities and accrued liabilities 642 1,954
Deferred tax liablilities 17 616 616
6,600 7,263
Current liabilities
Income tax liabilities 27 773 0
Trade payables 27 1,506 1,398
Liabilities to non-controlling interests 27 1,569 1,607
Other liabilities and accrued liabilities 27 20,444 17,087
24,292 20,092
Total equity and liabilities 78,017 72,746
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Consolidated statement of changes in group equity

for fiscal year 2017
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent Non con- Total
Amounts stated in EUR k Subscribed Capital Retained Total trolling equity
capital reserves earnings interests
Note 21 Note 23 Note 24 Note 25
01.01.2016 5,198 11,247 27,925 44,370 247 44,617
Total comprehensive income
for the period 0 0 19,002 19,002 139 19,141
Profit distributions 0 0 -18,350 -18,350 -17 -18,367
31.12.2016 5,198 11,247 28,577 45,022 369 45,391
01.01.2017 5,198 11,247 28,577 45,022 369 45,391
Total comprehensive income
for the period 0 0 20,570 20,570 213 20,783
Profit distributions 0 0 -19,025 -19,025 -24 -19,049
31.12.2017 5,198 11,247 30,122 46,567 558 47,125
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Consolidated cash flow statement for fiscal year 2017

Amounts stated in EUR k Notes 01.01.-31.12.2017 01.01.-31.12.2016
Cash flows from operating activities 28
Profit for the period before profit attributable to non-controlling interests 22,066 20,461
Tax expense 9,612 8,990
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 0 0
Finance income -7 -10
Finance costs 649 597
Non-cash transactions -11 -169
Operating profit before working capital changes 33,342 30,721
Increase/decrease in trade receivables and other assets -1,789 -689
Increase/decrease in prepaid expenses and deferred income 0 -37
Increase/decrease in trade payables, other liabilities and accrued liabilities 2,177 344
Other non-cash income 0 0
Cash flows from operating activities 33,730 30,339
Interest paid 0 0
Income taxes paid -8,237 -10,836
Net cash from operating activities 25,493 19,503
Cash flows from investing activities 29
Cash paid for intangible assets and property, plant and equipment -2,201 -1,762
Receipts frome the disposal of assets 24 0
Interest received 7 10
Net cash used in investing activities -2,170 -1,752
Cash flows from financing activities 30

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests in partnerships
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests in corporations

Cash paid to non-controlling interests -1,343 -999
Profit distributions -19,025 -18,350
Net cash used in financing activities -20,368 -19,349
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 2,955 -1,598
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 40,448 42,046
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 43,403 40,448

Composition of cash as of 30 December
Cash on hand and bank balances (without drawing restrections) 43,403 40,448
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General

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for fiscal year 2017

General

Amadeus FiRe AG is a stock corporation under German law and has its
registered office at Darmstédter Landstrasse 116, Frankfurt am Main,
Germany. The Company is entered in the commercial register at the local
court of Frankfurt, under HRB no. 45804.

Amadeus FiRe AG has been listed on the Regulated Market of the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange since 4 March 1999. Amadeus FiRe AG was admitted to
the Prime Standard on 31 January 2003.

The fiscal year is the calendar year.

The activities of the group entities comprise the provision of temporary
personnel within the framework of the AUG [“Arbeitnehmertiberlassungs-
gesetz”: German Personnel Leasing Act], permanent placement, interim
and project management as well as the provision of training in the areas
of tax, finance and accounting and financial control.

On 22 February 2018, the management board approved the IFRS consoli-
dated financial statements and subsequently passed them on to the super-
visory board for approval.

Abbreviations of group entities and investments

Akademie fur Internationale Rechnungslegung
Amadeus FiRe AG

Amadeus FiRe Personalvermittlung

Akademie flir Internationale Rechnungslegung (AkiR) GmbH, Colgone, Germany

Amadeus FiRe AG, Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Amadeus FiRe Personalvermittlung & Interim Management GmbH,

Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Amadeus FiRe Services

Endriss GmbH

Endriss Service GmbH

Greenwell Gleeson Osterreich

Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss

TaxMaster GmbH

Amadeus FiRe Services GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Dr. Endriss Verwaltungs-GmbH, Cologne, Germany

Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss Service GmbH, Cologne, Germany

Greenwell Gleeson Personalberatung GmbH i.l., Vienna, Austria

Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne, Germany

TaxMaster GmbH, Cologne, Germany
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Accounting Policies

Accounting Policies

Basis of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of Amadeus FiRe AG for the fiscal
year ended 31 December 2017 were prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) formulated by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as adopted by the EU.
All International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and all interpretations by the IFRS Inter-
pretations Committee (IFRS IC) — formerly the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) or the Standing Interpre-
tations Committee (SIC) — effective for fiscal year 2017 were observed.
The separate financial statements of the entities included in consolida-
tion were all prepared on the basis of uniform accounting policies. The
separate financial statements of the group entities were prepared as of
the balance sheet date of the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the cost
method. This does not include the liabilities in connection with the sett-
lement obligation to the non-controlling interests in Steuer-Fachschule
Dr. Endriss, which are recognized at fair value through profit or loss.

The consolidated financial statements of Amadeus FiRe AG are presen-
ted in euros.

Due to rounding differences, information presented in these consolida-
ted financial statements may differ slightly from the actual figures (units
of currency, percentages, etc.).

The following IASB pronouncements have been endorsed by the European ~ Amendments  Classification and Measurement
Union (EU) and are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after  to IFRS 2 of Share-Based Payment
1 January 2017: Transactions
Annual Amendments to IFRS 1, 1 January 2017/
New pronouncements Mandatory date of first- Improvements  IFRS 12, IAS 28 1 January 2018
time adoption (EV) to IFRS 2014-
Amendments  Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 2016
IAS 7 (Amendments to IAS 7 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
Cash Flow Statements IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2018
Amendments  Recognition of Deferred Tax 1 January 2017 Customers
to IAS 12 Assets for Unrealized Losses Clarifications to Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2018
(Amendments to IAS 12 IFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to
Income Taxes) IFRS 15)
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The first-time adoption of these standards in fiscal year 2017 did not have
any effect on the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial perfor-
mance in the consolidated financial statements of the Amadeus FiRe
Group.

The following IASB pronouncements have been endorsed by the EU but
were not effective for the 2017 reporting period:

New pronouncements Mandatory date of first-
time adoption (EV)
Amendments  Applying IFRS 9 Financial 1 January 2018
to IFRS 4 Instruments with IFRS 4 1 January 2018
Insurance Contracts (Amend-
ments to IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts)
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The Amadeus FiRe Group does not plan early adoption and the Group will
only apply these pronouncements in the reporting periods in which they
become effective in the EU.

The amendments to IFRS 4, the amendments to IFRS 2 and the annual
improvements to IFRS 2014-2016 are not relevant for the Amadeus FiRe
Group.

The first-time adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments in fiscal year 2018
will not have any material impact on Group’s assets, liabilities, financial
position and financial performance.
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Due to the simple structure of the Amadeus FiRe Group’s service portfolio,
revenue recognition will not change significantly in fiscal year 2018 as a
result of the initial application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (including the clarifications to IFRS 15).

We are currently analyzing the effects arising from the first-time adoption
of IFRS 16 Leases in fiscal year 2019 on the Amadeus FiRe Group’s assets,
liabilities, financial position and financial performance. We cannot reliably
estimate the quantitative effects until we have completed this project. Based
on our current knowledge, the Amadeus FiRe Group expects the following
qualitative impact on the consolidated financial statements:

- To date, payment obligations from operating leases have been disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. In the future, the
resulting rights and payment obligations will have to be recognized as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the balance sheet (right-of-use
model).

- On initial application, the Group expects a significant increase in total
equity and liabilities due to the increase in lease liabilities and a similar
rise in non-current assets as a result of the right-of-use assets to be recog-
nized as a result of applying the right-of-use model.

- In the consolidated income statement, the Group will have to recognize
depreciation charges and interest expenses instead of lease expenses in
the future.

Overall, total assets and total equity and liabilities should not increase by
more than the amount recognized as other financial commitments (less any
discounting effects; see note 34).

Consolidation principles

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include Amadeus FiRe
AG and all subsidiaries under the legal or factual control of the Company
(the “Group” or the “Amadeus FiRe Group™).

The financial statements of the domestic and foreign subsidiaries included
in consolidation are prepared in accordance with uniform accounting poli-
cies pursuant to IFRS 10. The Company applies the acquisition method pur-
suant to IFRS 3 to business combinations. Consolidation begins from the
date on which Amadeus FiRe AG obtains control over the subsidiary.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee that significantly affect
its returns)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Accounting Policies

New pronouncements Mandatory date of first-

time adoption (EU)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions 1 January 2018
and Advance Consideration
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 1 January 2019
Treatments
Amendments to Prepayment Feature with 1 January 2019
IFRS 9 Negative Compensation
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment 1 January 2019
IAS 19 or Settlement
Amendments to Accounting for long-term 1 January 2019
I1AS 28 interests in an associate or
joint venture that form part of
the net investment in the
associate or joint venture
Amendments to Transfers of Investment 1 January 2018
IAS 40 Property
Annual impro- ~ Amendments to IFRS 3, 1 January 2019
vements to IFRS 11, IAS 12, IAS 23

IFRS 2015-2017

The Amadeus FiRe Group intends to apply the new pronouncements listed
above as soon as they become effective in the EU. The IASB and IFRS IC
pronouncements are transposed into European law via endorsement by
the EU. They cannot be adopted early as they have not yet been endorsed.
Based on the Amadeus FiRe Group’s current knowledge, these pronoun-
cements, which have not yet been transposed into European law, will only
have a minor impact on the presentation of the Group’s assets, liabilities,
financial position and financial performance.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. This is true for all subsidiaries of the Amadeus FiRe Group.

During consolidation, receivables and liabilities between consolidated enti-
ties were fully eliminated, as were income and expenses within the Group.
Income and expenses relate solely to profit and loss transfer agreements,
interest income and interest expenses from loan agreements, and, to a les-
ser extent, advertising and other administrative services.

The goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
net assets of a subsidiary. The impairment test prescribed by IAS 36 was
performed as of 31 December 2017. The goodwill was allocated to the
cash-generating units. Cash-generating units are the operating, legally
independent entities of the Amadeus FiRe Group.
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Accounting Policies

Use of judgment and main sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, assumptions and esti-
mates were made which had an effect on the presentation and recognized
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, and on disclosed
contingent liabilities. These assumptions and estimates generally relate to
the goodwill impairment test, the measurement of liabilities to non-con-
trolling interests, the recoverability of future tax benefits and the classifi-
cation of leases by the lessee. Additional assumptions and estimates relate
to the uniform determination of economic lives of assets within the Group
and the recoverability of trade receivables.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines on each balance sheet date whether there are any
indications of impairment. Under IAS 36, goodwill is subject to an impair-
ment test once a year — or more often if there are indications of impair-
ment.

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss as soon as the carrying
amount of a cash-generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less the costs of
disposal and its value in use. Fair value less the costs of disposal is the
amount obtainable from a sale in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. Value in use is
the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an
asset or cash-generating unit. For further details, please see note 14.

The recoverable amount is determined based on a value in use calculation
using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method. The cash flows used in the
DCF valuation are based on current budgets and forecasts for the next five
years. This involves making assumptions as to future revenue and costs.
Assumptions as to future replacement investments in the Company’s
operations are made on the basis of historical values, and historical income
patterns are projected into the future. If significant assumptions differ from
actual figures, impairment losses may have to be recognized in the future.
The key assumptions used were a terminal growth rate of 1.0% (prior year:
1.0%), a pre-tax discount rate of 10.2% (prior year: 10.6%) and a post-
tax discount rate of 7.4% (prior year: 7.7%).

Currency translation

The presentation currency and the functional currency of the Company
and all consolidated entities is the euro.

Defined contribution plans

Under the defined contribution plans for basic pensions up to the income
threshold for the assessment of contributions, the Company pays contri-
butions to pension insurance schemes in accordance with statutory provi-
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Measurement of liabilities to non-controlling interests

As a result of the partners’ statutory right of termination in respect of their
interests in a partnership, the non-controlling interests in Steuer-Fachschule
Dr. Endriss are recognized in liabilities in accordance with I1AS 32.11. The
agreement concluded between the partners stipulates that termination is
possible as of 31 December 2017 at the earliest. A partner is entitled to a
settlement upon termination. The amount of the settlement is determined
using the Stuttgart method in accordance with the above partnership
agreement. The potential settlement obligation was measured at fair value
using the Stuttgart method as of the balance sheet date (EUR 5,521k; prior
year: EUR 4,860k) and the change in value was recognized in the income
statement under finance costs.

Deferred tax assets on loss carryforwards

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized. The calculation of the amount of the
deferred tax assets requires significant judgment on the part of manage-
ment as regards the amount and timing of the future taxable income and
the future tax planning strategies. As of 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets recognized for unused tax loss carryforwards
came to EUR Ok (prior year: EUR 0k), and the non-recognized unused tax
loss carryforwards totaled EUR 763k (prior year: EUR 658K). For further
details, please see notes 10 and 17.

Leases as the lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, whether
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. The Amadeus
FiRe Group is currently only a lessee under operating leases. Operating
lease payments are recognized as an expense in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. For further details,
please see note 34.

sions. The Company does not have any other benefit obligations beyond
the payment of contributions.
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Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue from temporary staffing services, permanent placement and
interim and project management is recognized once the service has been
rendered. Revenue from training services that are performed over an
extended period of time is recognized over time as the service is
rendered.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, which, in turn, is defined as the
amount by which the cost of the business combination exceeds the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired entity.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets not acquired as part of a business combination are recog-
nized initially at cost. The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business
combination is its fair value at the acquisition date. In subsequent periods,
the intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful eco-
nomic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. No impairment
losses had to be recognized or reversed in fiscal years 2016 and 2017.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis
over useful lives of 3 to 10 years. The residual carrying amounts, useful

Accounting Policies

Operating expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a service is used
or when the costs are incurred.

Interest income is recognized as the interest accrues. Interest income is
included in finance income in the consolidated income statement.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and
the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each fiscal year-end. No impairment losses had to
be recognized or reversed in fiscal years 2016 and 2017.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis over useful lives of 3 to 10
years.

lives and depreciation methods used are reviewed and adjusted as
necessary as of each fiscal year-end.
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Accounting Policies

Income taxes

Current income taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes are recognized using the liability method for temporary dif-
ferences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of good-
will or the initial recognition of an asset or liability resulting from a trans-
action that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss, and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary dif-
ferences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary dif-
ferences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences
and the carryforward of unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable

Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities carried on the consolidated balance
sheet include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,
other assets and other liabilities and liabilities to non-controlling interests.
The accounting policies for recognition and measurement of these items
are discussed in the relevant accounting policies found in this note.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents recognized in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise cash on hand and bank balances. They correspond to cash and
cash equivalents presented in the cash flow statement.

Trade receivables and other assets

Receivables are stated at the fair value of the consideration given and are
carried at amortized cost less any valuation allowances. In some cases,
impaired and uncollectible trade receivables are written down using allo-
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that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary dif-
ference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability resulting
from a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss, and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with invest-
ments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part
or all of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and recognized to the
extent to which it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substan-
tively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Financial instruments are classified as financial assets or financial liabilities
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest,
dividends, gains and losses relating to financial instruments or components
thereof classified as financial liabilities are recognized as an expense or
income in the consolidated income statement.

wance accounts. The decision as to whether a credit risk should be accoun-
ted for via an allowance account or through a direct reduction of the recei-
vable depends on the degree of reliability of the risk situation assessment.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group tests financial assets or groups of financial assets for impair-
ment at each balance sheet date.

If there is an objective indication that financial assets carried at amortized
cost are impaired, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding expected future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective in-
terest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate determined on initial recog-
nition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through an allowance
account. The impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Trade payables

Trade payables are measured at amortized cost, representing the sett-
lement amount.

Liabilities to non-controlling interests

For information on liabilities to non-controlling interests, please see the
comments under “Use of judgment and main sources of estimation
uncertainty.”

Accrued liabilities

Accrued liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from
the entity of resources embodying economic benefits.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Given their short maturities, the carrying amounts of financial assets
and liabilities approximate their fair values. Impairment losses are recog-

Accounting for leases as the lessee

As the Amadeus FiRe Group’s lease agreements are all operating leases
the leased assets are not capitalized by the lessee. The lease payments

Accounting Policies

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed. However, the new carrying amount of the asset may not exceed
the amortized cost at the date of reversal. The reversal is recognized in
profit or loss.

If there is objective evidence (such as probability of insolvency or signifi-
cant financial difficulties of the obligor) that not all due amounts of trade
receivables will be collected pursuant to the original payment terms, an
impairment loss is charged using an allowance account. Receivables are
derecognized when they are classified as uncollectible.

nized on financial assets whose carrying amount is higher than their fair
value (present value of estimated future cash flows).

are recognized as an expense in the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the consolidated income statement

Notes to the consolidated income statement

1. Revenue

The Company provides temporary staffing, permanent placement,
interim and project management as well as training services, mainly on
the basis of service contracts

Amounts stated in EUR k 2017 2016 Change from the prior year
EUR k %
Temporary staffing 124,218 121,345 2,873 2%
Permanent placement 28,963 21,651 7,312 34%
Interim and project management 9,204 9,580 -376 -4%
Training 22,139 20,719 1,420 7%
184,525 173,295 11,230 6%

All current-period revenue was generated by services and mainly in
Germany. Around 12% of total revenue (prior year: 12%) was generated
from private customers, with training being the main source of such
revenue. 88% of revenue (prior year: 88%) was generated with around
5,200 corporate customers (prior year: 4,600), while revenue from the
10 largest customers accounts for around 7% (prior year: 9%). The

2. Cost of sales

Personnel expenses for temporary staff, the cost of services purchased
from external consultants, lecturer fees, expenses for training rooms,
and personnel expenses for staff employed in permanent placement

3. Selling expenses

Selling expenses include management expenses, personnel expenses for
sales staff, the premises and vehicle expenses attributable to such staff,
marketing costs and depreciation of the non-current assets used. In addi-

4. General and administrative expenses

Administrative expenses include management expenses, personnel
expenses for head office employees, premises and vehicle expenses attri-
butable to such staff as well as depreciation of the non-current assets

customer with the largest share of revenue contributed 1.9% to total
revenue (prior year: 2.1%).

For information on the development of revenue by segment, please see
the section on segment reporting.

services are recognized as cost of sales. Assignment-related travel
expenses were also reported in this item.

tion, expenses for communication as well as training costs for the sales
department are included on a proportionate basis.

used. Ongoing IT costs, legal and consulting fees, accounting costs as
well as costs of shareholder meetings and the financial statements are
also recognized in this item.

5. Additional disclosures required due to the use of the function of expense method

The Group had an average of 2,739 employees and trainees in fiscal
year 2017 (prior year: 2,673). In the fiscal year, personnel expenses
amounted to EUR 115,678k (prior year: EUR 108,307k). EUR 78,600k of
these expenses related to employees on customer assignments (prior
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year: EUR 75,900k), EUR 31,062k to sales staff (prior year: EUR 26,566Kk),
EUR 5,798k to administrative staff (prior year: EUR 5,596k) and
EUR 218k to trainees (prior year: EUR 245k).
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Headcount breaks down as follows:

2017 2016
Administrative staff 40 42
Sales staff 442 387
Employees on customer assignments 2,241 2,226
2,723 2,655
Trainees 16 18
2,739 2,673

6. Other operating income

Other operating income mainly includes discounts, income from reno-
vation allowances and income from subleasing.

7. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses mainly include expenses stemming from los-
ses on disposals of non-current assets.

8. Impairment of goodwill

An impairment test of recognized goodwill was carried out in accor-
dance with IAS 36. No impairment losses were identified in fiscal years
2016 and 2017.

9. Financial result

The financial result includes finance income of EUR 7k (prior year:
EUR 10K). This was primarily generated with time deposits at banks.

10. Income taxes

Income taxes were determined on the basis of the results of the indivi-
dual entities in fiscal year 2017. The corporate income tax rate in fiscal
year 2017 amounted to 15% of the tax base (prior year: 15%). As in the
prior year, a 5.5% solidarity surcharge was levied on the corporate
income tax. The trade tax rate varies throughout Germany; for the

As of the balance sheet dates, income taxes broke down as follows:

Notes to the consolidated income statement

In the fiscal year, contributions to the statutory pension insurance system
and to direct insurance policies amounted to EUR 8,698k (prior year:
EUR 8,166Kk).

Amortization of intangible assets and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment amounted to EUR 1,033k in the fiscal year (prior year:
EUR 852Kk).

Finance costs amount to EUR 649k (prior year: EUR 597k). These arose
as a result of measuring the non-controlling interests in line with the
development of the related liability.

Amadeus FiRe Group, it averages 15.9% (prior year: 15.9%) of the tax
base. In the fiscal year, deferred tax income of EUR 25k was recognized
in profit or loss for temporary measurement differences (prior year:
deferred tax income of EUR 174Kk).

Amounts stated in EUR k 2017 2016

Current tax expense:

Corporate income tax and solidarity surcharge 4,940 4,697

Corporate income tax and solidarity surcharge for prior years 0 0

Trade tax on income 4,697 4,467
9,636 9,164

Deferred taxes:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences -25 -174

Tax expense 9,612 8,990

For information on the composition of deferred taxes, please see note 17.
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Notes to the consolidated income statement

Reconciliation pursuant to IAS 12;

The theoretical amount of tax that would have resulted had the group
tax rate of 31.8% for the above income taxes (prior year: 31.8%) been
applied to the pre-tax result is reconciled to the reported total tax
expense as follows:

Amounts stated in EUR k 2017 2016

Profit/loss before taxes 31,677 29,451
Theoretical tax expense based on the effective tax rate in Germany 10,073 9,365
Trade tax add-backs 55 52
Tax on non-deductible expenses 68 108
Tax payable by non-controlling interests -301 -283
Trade tax exemption for Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss -328 -375
Trade tax exemption for TaxMaster GmbH -80 -45
Other 125 168
Reported tax expense 9,612 8,990

11. Profit attributable to non-controlling interests disclosed under liabilities

The profit share attributable to the non-controlling interests in Steuer-
Fachschule Dr. Endriss was recognized in profit or loss for the period as

12. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated in accordance with IAS 33. Profit for
the period attributable to equity holders of the parent is divided by the

these non-controlling interests are classified as liabilities in accordance
with IAS 32.

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
fiscal year to give the basic earnings per share.

2017 2016
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent EUR k 20,570 19,002
Weighted average number of ordinary shares units 5,198,237 5,198,237
Basic earnings per share EUR 3.96 3.66
Diluted earnings per share EUR 3.96 3.66

13. Other comprehensive income

In the reporting period, the effect was EUR Ok (prior year: EUR 0K).
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

Non-current assets

14. Intangible assets

Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Software under development 2,318 2,402
Software 1,654 607
Goodwill 6,935 6,935

10,907 9,944

Software under development of EUR 2,318k (prior year: EUR 2,402k)
mainly includes payments for the acquisition of the software.

No internally generated non-current intangible assets were recognized.
Amortization of software of EUR 348k (prior year: EUR 250k) is recognized
in cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses.

Impairment of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is determined in a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on five-year
financial budgets and forecasts prepared by management. The pre-tax dis-
count rate applied to the cash flow projections is 10.2% (prior year:
10.6%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-
generating units beyond the five-year period is 1.0% (prior year: 1.0%).

Key assumptions used in value in use calculations

The following assumptions used in calculating the value in use of the cash-

generating units leave room for estimation uncertainty:

- Five-year business plan

- Discount rates

- Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flow projections beyond the fore-
cast period

Five-year business plan — The business plan was prepared on the basis of
estimates of future business development made by management. These
estimates are based on historical values.

15. Property, plant and equipment

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
1,677 1,497
1,677 1,497

Amounts stated in EUR k

Property, plant and equipment

Discount rates — The discount rates reflect estimates made by manage-
ment on risks to be attributed to specific cash-generating units. A base
rate of 1.25% (prior year: 1.00%) and a risk premium of 6.25% (prior
year: 6.25%) were used to determine the appropriate discount rates for
the individual cash-generating units.

Estimates of growth rates — The terminal growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flow projections beyond the forecast period remained un-
changed against the prior year at 1.0%.

Sensitivity of assumptions made

Management believes that no reasonably possible change to the assump-
tions made for determining the value in use of the remaining cash-gene-
rating units Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss, Akademie fiir Internationale
Rechnungslegung, Amadeus FiRe Personalvermittlung and Amadeus FiRe
AG could cause the carrying amount of the cash-generating units to
materially exceed their recoverable amount. In addition to the impairment
test, a sensitivity analysis was performed for the cash-generating units. If
the discount rates used were to increase or the terminal growth rate were
to decrease by one percentage point, there would still not be any need to
recognize impairment losses for all four cash-generating units.

The goodwill acquired in business combinations was allocated for impair-
ment testing to the following cash-generating units:

Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Goodwill Steuer-Fachschule

Dr. Endriss 3,853 3,853

Goodwill Amadeus FiRe

Personalvermittlung 1,388 1,388

Goodwill Akademie fiir

Internationale Rechnungslegung 1,280 1,280

Goodwill Amadeus FiRe AG 415 415
6,935 6,935

Depreciation of EUR 685k (prior year: EUR 602K) is recognized in cost
of sales, selling and administrative expenses.
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

16. Consolidated statement of changes in non-current assets for fiscal year 2017

Amounts stated in EUR k Cost
01.01.2017 Additions Disposals Reclassifications 31.12.2017

Intangible assets

Software 4,847 440 51 955 6,191
Software under development 2,402 871 0 -955 2,318
Goodwill 14,254 0 0 0 14,254

21,503 1,311 51 0 22,763

Property, plant and equipment

Other plant and equipment 6,298 847 329 13 6,829
Property, plant and equipment
under development 13 43 0 -13 43
6,311 890 329 0 6,872
27,814 2,201 380 0 29,635
Amounts stated in EUR k Accumulated amortization, depreciation and impairment Carrying amounts
01.01.2017 Additions Disposals 31.12.2017 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Intangible assets

Software 4,240 348 51 4,537 1,654 607
Software under development 0 0 0 0 2,318 2,402
Goodwill 7,319 0 0 7,319 6,935 6,935

11,559 348 51 11,856 10,907 9,944

Property, plant and equipment

Other plant and equipment 4,801 685 291 5,195 1,634 1,497
Property, plant and equipment
under development 0 0 0 0 43 13
4,801 685 291 5,195 1,677 1,510
16,360 1,033 342 17,051 12,584 11,454
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

16. Consolidated statement of changes in non-current assets for fiscal year 2016

Amounts stated in EUR k Cost
01.01.2016 Additions Disposals Reclassifications 31.12.2016

Intangible assets

Software 4,453 391 7 10 4,847

Software under development 1,573 868 0 -39 2,402

Goodwill 14,254 0 0 0 14,254
20,280 1,259 7 -29 21,503

Property, plant and equipment

Other plant and equipment 5,885 491 107 29 6,298

Property, plant and equipment

under development 0 13 0 0 13

5,885 504 107 29 6,311

26,165 1,763 114 0 27,814

Amounts stated in EUR k Accumulated amortization, depreciation and impairment Carrying amounts

01.01.2016 Additions Disposals 31.12.2016 31.12.2016 31.12.2015

Intangible assets

Software 3,997 250 7 4,240 607 456

Software under development 0 0 0 0 2,402 1,573

Goodwill 7,319 0 0 7,319 6,935 6,935
11,316 250 7 11,559 9,944 8,964

Property, plant and equipment

Other plant and equipment 4,301 602 102 4,801 1,497 1,584

Property, plant and equipment

under development 0 0 0 0 13 0

4,301 602 102 4,801 1,510 1,584

15,617 852 109 16,360 11,454 10,548
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

17. Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes break down as follows as of the balance sheet date:

Amounts stated in EUR k

Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated income statement

31.12.2017 31.12.2016 2017 2016
Deffered tax assets

Liabilities to non-controlling interests 928 813 115 106
Accrued liabilities 143 233 -90 68
Tax loss carryforwards 0 0 0 0
1,071 1,046 25 174

Deferred tax liabilities
Goodwill usable for tax purposes 616 616 0 0
616 616 0 0
Total tax income/expense 25 174

The unused tax loss carryforwards include an amount of EUR 763k (prior
year: EUR 658k), for which no deferred tax assets were recorded due to
uncertainty as to the realization of the loss carryforwards. In accordance

Current assets

18. Income tax credit, trade receivables and other assets

The prior-year income tax credit includes income taxes for fiscal year
2016 and prior years taking into account refundable tax on investment

income and the related solidarity surcharge.

Trade receivables break down as follows:

Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Trade receivables 20,642 18,724
Allowances -222 -120
20,420 18,604

Overdue trade receivables which were not impaired break down as

follows as of 31 December:

with the prevailing legal provisions, these tax loss carryforwards can be
carried forward for an indefinite time and in an unlimited amount as long
as they are not utilized.

Group EUR k Total Neither overdue nor Overdue but not impaired
impaired by less than 30 days 30 to 60 days 60 to 90 days  more than 90 days
2017 20,286 12,767 6,376 921 190 32
2016 18,554 12,435 SMI58 812 135 19
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The maximum credit risk is reflected in the amortized cost of the
receivables and other financial assets which are recorded on the balance
sheet.

Credit checks and a dunning system limit the risk of receivable losses.
In operating activities, outstanding receivables are monitored continu-
ously by location, i.e., locally. On 31 December 2017, the average term
of trade receivables in relation to revenue in the month of December
was 35 days (31 December 2016: 34 days).

Default risk is accounted for by specific bad debt allowances. As of the
balance sheet date, there were neither material offset amounts, which
reduce this risk, nor financial guarantees for third-party obligations,
which increase this risk.

For trade receivables which were neither impaired nor in arrears, there
were no indications as of the balance sheet date that the debtors will
not meet their payment obligations. Trade receivables are non-interest
bearing and are generally due within 8 to 90 days. Bad debts on trade
receivables amounted to EUR 97k in fiscal year 2017 (prior year:
EUR 120K). This is the absolute default amount of trade receivables inde-
pendent of the recognition and consideration of bad debt allowances.
This equates to 0.48% of the receivables volume as of the balance sheet
date (prior year: 0.65%).

The net loss in the category trade receivables came to EUR 214k (prior
year: EUR 138Kk). The net loss in the category loans and receivables came

to EUR 207Kk (prior year: EUR 128k).

Bad debt allowances developed as follows:

Group EUR k 2017 2016
Allowances on 1 January 120 102
Charge for the year 187 114
Utilization -33 -26
Reversals -52 -70
Allowances on 31 December 222 120

19. Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses totaling EUR 467k (prior year: EUR 467k) chiefly com-
prise amounts paid in advance for job advertisements and maintenance
services.

Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

Group procedures are in force to ensure that services are only rendered
to customers with a proven credit history and who do not exceed an
acceptable credit exposure limit. In fiscal year 2017, receivables totaling
EUR 187k net (prior year: EUR 114k) were written down. This mainly
relates to allowances for trade receivables and their derecognition due
to uncollectibility.

Other assets break down as follows:

Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Receivables from employees 27 85
Other 46 34
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Assets of EUR 36Kk (prior year: EUR 47Kk) of the total other assets recog-
nized have a credit risk. These assets were neither overdue nor impaired
as of the balance sheet date.

With regard to other financial assets which were neither impaired nor
in arrears, there were no indications as of the balance sheet date that
the debtors will not meet their payment obligations.

Trade receivables and other assets mainly have short terms. Thus, the

carrying amounts as of the balance sheet date correspond to the fair
value.
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents solely comprise cash on hand and bank ba-
lances as well as short-term time deposits that have terms of up to 90
days starting from the date of placement. As of the balance sheet date
31 December 2017, the interest rate for the time deposits was 0.00% (prior
year: between 0.00% and 0.02%).

Cash and cash equivalents mainly have short terms. Thus, the carrying
amounts as of the balance sheet date correspond to the fair value.

Equity

21. Capital stock (subscribed capital)

The subscribed capital is the parent company’s capital stock of
EUR 5,198,237.00 and is divided into 5,198,237 no-par value bearer shares
held by numerous shareholders. No shareholders are known to hold more
than 25% of shares. The subscribed capital has been fully paid in.

By resolution of the shareholder meeting on 27 May 2015, the Company
is authorized for a period until 26 May 2020 to acquire via the stock
exchange treasury shares of up to a total of 10% of the capital stock avail-
able at the time of the resolution. The purchase price per share (excluding
acquisition charges) may not be more than 10% above or below the price
of an Amadeus FiRe share determined in the opening auction in XETRA
trading (or in a comparable successor system) on any given trading day.

At no time may the shares acquired on the basis of this authorization
together with other treasury shares already purchased and held by the
Company or which are attributable to the Company constitute more than
10% of the relevant capital stock.

The authorization may be exercised by the Company in full or in part, on
one or several occasions and also for its account by third parties.

The management board is authorized to re-sell treasury shares purchased
under the current or previous authorizations on the stock exchange or by
means of a tender addressed to all shareholders or use them as follows:

- With the approval of the supervisory board, treasury shares may be
redeemed without the need for a resolution by the shareholder meeting
to approve redemption.

- With the approval of the supervisory board, treasury shares may be of-
fered and transferred to third parties in return for contributions in kind,
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Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Bank balances 40,651 17,334
Cash on hand 7 8
Time deposits 2,745 23,106
43,403 40,448

in particular in connection with business combinations or the acquisition
of entities, parts of entities or equity investments in entities.

- With the approval of the supervisory board, treasury shares may be sold
to third parties in return for cash provided that the Amadeus FiRe shares
are not sold at a price that is significantly less than the stock market
price (Sec. 186 (3) Sentence 4 AktG [“Aktiengesetz”: German Stock Cor-
poration Act]).

In aggregate, the shares used on the basis of the authorizations for sale
to third parties in return for cash and issued applying Sec. 186 (3) Sentence
4 AktG as appropriate (subject to the exclusion of subscription rights in
return for contributions in cash close to the stock market price) must not
exceed 10% of the capital stock at the time of use. Shares which are issued
on the basis of other existing authorizations during the term of this
authorization applying Sec. 186 (3) Sentence 4 AktG directly or indirectly
are counted towards this aggregate amount. The authorizations to sell or
use treasury shares may be exercised on one or several occasions, indivi-
dually or jointly, in full or in part.

The shareholders’ subscription rights to purchased treasury shares are
excluded to the extent that these shares are used to acquire contributions
in kind or sold to third parties in return for cash under the above authori-
zations.
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22. Authorized capital

By virtue of a resolution adopted by the shareholder meeting on 27 May
2015, the management board was authorized to increase the capital stock
on or prior to 26 May 2020, with the approval of the supervisory board,
on one or more occasions, by up to an aggregate of EUR 1,559,471.00 by
issuing up to 1,559,471 new no-par value bearer shares in return for cash
contributions or contributions in kind (Authorized Capital 2015). In this
regard, shareholders must be granted indirect subscription rights
(Sec. 186 (5) AktG). However, the management board is authorized, with
the approval of the supervisory board, to exclude the shareholders’ sub-
scription rights:

a) if the capital increase is made in return for cash contributions and if
the notional share in capital stock of the new shares for which the sub-
scription right is excluded does not exceed 10% of the lower of capital

23. Capital reserves

The capital reserves are chiefly the result of amounts generated in excess
of the nominal value from the issuance of shares (premium).

24. Retained earnings

Retained earnings as of 31 December 2017 break down as follows:

Amounts stated in EUR k

Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

stock existing on the date of entry of the authorization in the commer-
cial register or the capital stock available on the date of issue of the
new shares, and the issue price of the new shares is not, pursuant to
Sec. 203 (1) and (2) and Sec. 186 (3) Sentence 4 AktG, significantly less
than the stock market price of the Company’s shares of the same class
and features which are already traded on the stock exchange on the
date the final issue price is determined by the management board;
shares which are issued or sold during the term of the authorization
until the date of its exercise applying Sec. 186 (3) Sentence 4 AktG
directly or indirectly are included when calculating the 10% upper limit;

b) if capital increases are made in return for non-cash contributions for
the purposes of acquiring entities, parts of entities or equity invest-
ments in entities;

c) for fractional amounts.

In the prior year, retained earnings developed as follows:

Amounts stated in EUR k

As of 1 January 2017 28,577 As of 1 January 2016 27,925
Profit distributions -19,025 Profit distributions -18,350
Profit for the period accruing to the Profit for the period accruing to the

equity holders of the parent 20,570 equity holders of the parent 19,002
As of 31 December 2017 30,122 As of 31 December 2016 28,577

25. Non-controlling interests

The non-controlling interests recognized separately under equity relate to
shares in Endriss GmbH, TaxMaster GmbH, Endriss Service GmbH and
Akademie fur Internationale Rechnungslegung.

26. Non-current liabilities

Liabilities to non-controlling interests

These liabilities are due to the non-controlling interests in Steuer-Fach-
schule Dr. Endriss. For more information, please see the comments under
“Use of judgment and main sources of estimation uncertainty.”
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

27. Current liabilities

Liabilities classified as current have a residual term of up to one year. No  Accrued liabilities break down as follows:
collateral has been provided.

Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.21.2016

Income tax liabilities Bonuses 6,533 3,936
In the prior year, income tax liabilities of EUR 1,046k related to amounts Accrued vacation 2,358 2,088
owed by the group entities for previous fiscal years and for fiscal year Outstanding invoices 978 1,064
2015. Overtime 568 623

Employer’s liability insurance 512 539
Trade payables poy y
All trade payables are due to third parties; they are stated at the settlement Personnel, other 365 e
amount. Audit and tax consulting fees 137 136

Legal and consulting costs 84 39
Liabilities to non-controlling interests Other 842 814
These liabilities are mainly due to claims of non-controlling interests to a 12376 9.687
share in the profit for the period (EUR 1,569Kk; prior year: EUR 1,607k). Other liabilities and accrued liabilities 20,444 17,087

Other liabilities and accrued liabilities
Other liabilities break down as follows: The other accrued liabilities include levies in lieu of employing the severely
disabled, remuneration to the supervisory board and the costs of the

Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.21.2016 .
shareholder meeting.
Prepayments of course fees 4,485 4,107
VAT 2,142 2,008
Wage and church tax 1,422 1,256
Other 19 29
8,068 7,400
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Financial liabilities

Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

Group in EUR k 31.12.2017
Total Residual term Residual term Residual term
up to 1 year beetween 1 and more than
5 years 5 years
Liabilities to non-controlling interests, undiscounted 7,199 1,569 5,630 0
Trade payables 1,506 1,506 0 0
Other financial liabilities 15 15 0 0
Total 8,720 3,090 5,630 0
31.12.2016
Total Residual term Residual term Residual term
up to 1 year beetween 1 and more than
5 years 5 years
Liabilities to non-controlling interests, undiscounted 6,576 1,607 4,969 0
Trade payables 1,398 1,398 0 0
Other financial liabilities 11 11 0 0
Total 7,985 3,016 4,969 0

Current liabilities to non-controlling interests are attributable to the profit
for the period of the individual entities in fiscal year 2017.

The non-current liabilities to non-controlling interests are due in 2019 at
the earliest. For more information on maturities, please see our comments
under “Use of judgment and main sources of estimation uncertainty.”

Financial liabilities to non-controlling interests that relate to severance
payment options bear interest. The remaining financial liabilities to non-
controlling interests are non-interest bearing.

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally due in 90 days or
less (prior year: 90 days).

Measurement of financial instruments by category

Financial assets and financial liabilities are assigned to the categories
“Loans and receivables™ and ““Financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost™ in accordance with IAS 39. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are all measured at amortized cost. Only the liabilities in connection with
the settlement obligation to the non-controlling interests in Steuer-Fach-
schule Dr. Endriss of EUR 5,234k (prior year: EUR 4,585k) are recognized

Other financial liabilities are non-interest bearing and due in 30 days on
average.

Trade payables and other liabilities are generally due in the short term;
the amounts recognized in the balance sheet approximate the fair values.
As the contractual agreements relating to the financial liabilities do not
provide for the possibility of premature termination, there were no liquidity
risks as of the balance sheet date.

at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amounts of all financial
instruments recognized in the consolidated financial statements approxi-
mate their fair value. The carrying amount of financial instruments of the
category “Loans and receivables” is EUR 63,843k (prior year:
EUR 59,073k). The carrying amount of the category “Financial liabilities™
comes to EUR 8,145k (prior year: EUR 7,710Kk).
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Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

The Company’s cash flow statement is in accordance with IAS 7. As such,
cash flows are broken down into cash flows from operating activities, in-
vesting activities and financing activities.

28. Cash flows from operating activities

The cash flows from operating activities increased to EUR 25,493k during
fiscal year 2017 (prior year: EUR 19,503k). This corresponds to an increase
of EUR 5,990k. This change is attributable to a EUR 2,621k increase in

29. Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased to EUR 2,170k (prior year:
EUR 1,752K). Investments in intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment increased by EUR 439k year on year. The investments were
mainly made to improve the Company’s IT infrastructure for both software

30. Cash flows from financing activities

In fiscal year 2017, EUR 19,025k of the accumulated profit for 2016 was
distributed to the shareholders (prior year: EUR 18,350k). This corresponds
to a dividend of EUR 3.66 per share (prior year: EUR 3.53 per share). Divi-
dends of EUR 1,343k were distributed to non-controlling interests (prior
year: EUR 999K). As a result, the cash outflow increased to EUR 20,368k
(prior year: EUR 19,349k). The settlement option held by the non-control-

The changes in financial liabilities whose cash flows are currently shown
or will be shown as cash flows from financing activities in the future are
as follows:

Amounts stated in EUR k

operating profit before working capital changes, a EUR 770k change in
net working capital and a decrease by EUR 2,599k in the amount of
income taxes paid in comparison with the prior year.

and hardware and to develop a new sales software program. Due to the
continued drop in interest rates in fiscal year 2017, interest received
decreased by EUR 3k.

ling interests of Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss of EUR 5,234k (prior year:
EUR 4,585k) is a potential outflow. It has been recognized since fiscal year
2005. It is currently not expected that this option will be exercised in the
future.

Cash changes in
profit attributable

profit attributable to

to non-controlling measurement non-controlling

31.12.2016 interests effects interests 31.12.2017
Non-current liabilities:
Liabilities to non-controlling interests 4,693 649 - 5,342
Current liabilities:
Liabilities to non-controlling interests 1,607 -1,320 - 1,282 1,569
Total 6,300 -1,320 649 1,282 6,911
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Notes to the segment reporting

31. Segment reporting

The Group’s business is organized by products and services for corporate

management purposes and has the following two segments which are

subject to reporting:

a. Temporary staffing/interim and project management/permanent
placement

b. Training

For a description of the segments, please see the management report.

The operating result of each segment is monitored separately by manage-

ment. The performance of the segments is assessed on the basis of their

profit from operations before goodwill impairment (EBITA).

Amounts stated in EUR k

Notes to the segment reporting

Transfer prices between the operating segments are set on an arm’s length
basis.

Segment reporting by geographical segment is not performed because the
Company currently renders most of its services in Germany, and thus is
only active in one geographical segment.

As information on the allocation of liabilities to reporting segments is not
used as a basis for management decisions, such information is not
recorded in the accounts.

Temporary staffing / permanent placement/

interim and project management Training Consolidated
01.01.-31.12.2017
Revenue*
Segment revenue 162,386 22,139 184,525
Result
Segment result before goodwill impairment (EBITA) 28,135 4,184 32,319
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 665 368 1,033
Impairment of goodwill 0 0 0
Segment assets 62,775 15,242 78,017
Investments 1,730 471 2,201
Finance costs 0 649 649
Finance income 1 6 7
Income taxes 9,078 534 9,612
01.01.-31.12.2016
Revenue*
Segment revenue 152,576 20,719 173,295
Result
Segment result before goodwill impairment (EBITA) 26,102 3,936 30,038
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 560 292 852
Impairment of goodwill 0 0 0
Segment assets 58,555 14,191 72,746
Investments 1,369 393 1,762
Finance costs 0 597 597
Finance income 4 6 10
Income taxes 8,549 441 8,990

*) Revenue between segments of EUR 22 k (prior year: EUR 12 k) and EUR 21 k (prior year: EUR 28 k) was eliminated.
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Other Notes

32. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The main financial liabilities used by the Group comprise trade payables,
liabilities to non-controlling interests and other liabilities. The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to fund the Group’s operations. The Group
has various financial assets such as trade receivables, cash and cash equi-
valents which arise directly from its operations.

The Group does not have any derivative financial instruments and no tra-
ding with derivatives took place in fiscal years 2017 and 2016.

Interest-related cash flow risks as well as liquidity and credit risks may
result from financial instruments; these risks are subject to constant moni-
toring by the Company’s management. The following sections describe
how management currently evaluates these risks and their effects.

Interest rate risk

The potential settlement obligation for the non-controlling interests in
Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss is recognized in the non-current liabilities to
non-controlling interests. The resulting obligations were measured at their
present value as of the balance sheet date. There is no significant interest
rate risk from these non-current liabilities.

The Group also generates finance income from its balances at various
banks. The table below shows the sensitivity of the Group’s profit or loss
before taxes to a reasonably possible change in interest rates:

Increase/decrease Effect on profit or loss
in basis points before taxes (EUR k)
2017 +50 220
-50 -221
2016 +50 20
-50 -207

Currency risk
The Group operates in Germany. There is no currency risk.

33. Contingent liabilities

The Company has issued rental payment guarantees of EUR 1,465k to
lessors. No other contingent liabilities subject to compulsory disclosure
exist.
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Credit risk

The Group trades only with third parties of good credit standing. All
customers intending to enter into transactions with the Group on a credit
basis undergo a credit check. Management has set guidelines for reviewing
creditworthiness and dunning. In addition, receivable balances are moni-
tored on an ongoing basis. As a result, the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant. The maximum credit risk is limited to the carrying amount
reported in note 18.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the
Group, such as cash and cash equivalents, the maximum credit risk in the
event of default by a counterparty is the carrying amount of these instru-
ments.

Liquidity risk
The Group has adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover all its payment
obligations. No liquidity risk exists for the Group at present.

Capital management

The Group’s capital management activities are primarily aimed at main-
taining a good equity ratio and a sustained return on capital employed in
order to support its operations and maximize its shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group can alter its dividend payments to shareholders
or issue new shares.

The Company’s equity ratio was 60.4% as of the balance sheet date (prior
year: 62.4%), while the return on equity amounted to 47.7% (prior year:
45.4%). The return on equity was calculated on the basis of weighted
monthly values.
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34. Other financial obligations

Amounts stated in EUR k 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Less than 1 year 5,664 4,892
1to 5 years 17,455 18,458
More than 5 years 7,886 9,823
31,005 33,173

35. Related party relationships

There were no significant related party relationships in the fiscal year.

The consolidated financial statements include Amadeus FiRe AG and the
subsidiaries listed in the following table (Amadeus FiRe Group):

Share in equity in %

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Direct equity investments/
financial assets
Amadeus FiRe Services 100 100
Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss 60 60
Endriss GmbH 60 60
Amadeus FiRe Personalvermittlung 100 100
Greenwell Gleeson Austria 100 100
Indirect equity investments/
financial assets
Akademie fiir
Internationale Rechnungslegung 60 60
TaxMaster GmbH 48 48
Endriss Service GmbH 60 60

Management board

In fiscal year 2017, Mr. Peter Haas (graduate in business economics),
Rodermark (CEO), and Mr. Robert von Wiilfing (business administration
graduate), Konigstein (CFO), were the incumbent members of the manage-
ment board with authorization to represent the Company on their own.
They are entitled to conclude legal transactions on behalf of the Company
with themselves acting as agents of third parties.

Other Notes

Other financial obligations consist mainly of office rental obligations and
lease agreements for various vehicles. The average term of the lease agree-
ments is 3 to 10 years. The leases do not contain any renewal options. No
restrictions were imposed on the Company by the lease agreements.
Expenses from rental and lease agreements amounted to a total of
EUR 5,723k in the fiscal year (prior year: EUR 5,347k).

Amadeus FiRe AG indirectly holds 80% of the shares in TaxMaster GmbH
through Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss. Amadeus FiRe AG indirectly holds
100% of the shares in Endriss Service GmbH and Akademie fiir Inter-
nationale Rechnungslegung via Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss.

In fiscal year 2017, the following responsibilities were allocated to the
members of the management board according to the distribution-of-
business plan drawn up by the supervisory board:

Mr. Peter Haas, Chief Executive Officer:
Corporate strategy, personnel services segment, acquisitions and invest-
ments, marketing and public relations as well as investor relations

Mr. Robert von Willfing, Chief Financial Officer:

Finance and accounting and financial control, personnel administration,
IT, legal and internal audit, training segment
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Supervisory board

In fiscal year 2017, the supervisory board of Amadeus FiRe AG comprised
six members representing the shareholders and six members representing
the employees pursuant to the MitbestG [“Mitbestimmungsgesetz”:
German Codetermination Act] and in accordance with Art. 9 (1) of its
articles of incorporation and bylaws. These are:

- Mr. Christoph Gross
Mainz, auditor, Chairman
- Mr. Michael C. Wisser
Neu-Isenburg, business administration graduate, member of the
management board of Aveco AG, Frankfurt am Main, Deputy Chairman
- Mr. Knuth Henneke
Neustadt, independent business consultant
- Mr. Hartmut van der Straeten
Wehrheim, independent business consultant
- Ms. Ines Leffers
Krefeld, tax advisor, Director International Tax of the Signode Industrial
Group, Dusseldorf, until 18 May 2017
- Ms. Annett Martin
Wiesbaden, German public auditor/tax advisor, Wiesbaden,
since 3 August 2017
- Dr. Ulrike Schweibert
Bad Vilbel, lawyer and partner of the law firm Schweibert Lessmann &
Partner, Frankfurt am Main
- Ms. Ulrike Bert
Grossostheim-Ringheim, financial accountant at Amadeus FiRe AG,
employee representative
- Ms. Urike Sommer
Muhlheim, personnel clerk, Amadeus FiRe AG,
employee representative

- Ms. Sibylle Lust
Frankfurt am Main, trade union secretary,
employee representative

- Mr. Elmar Roth
Alzenau, IT executive,
employee representative

- Mr. Mathias Venema
Mainz, trade union secretary,
employee representative

- Mr. Andreas Setzwein
Obertshausen, lawyer,
employee representative

The supervisory board set up the following committees:

Accounting and audit committee
Chairman: Mr. Hartmut van der Straeten
Other members: Mr. Michael C. Wisser

Ms. Ulrike Bert

Mr. Andreas Setzwein

Personnel committee

Chairman: Mr. Christoph Gross

Other members: Mr. Michael C. Wisser
Mr. Knuth Henneke,
Ms. Ulrike Sommer

Functions of board members on supervisory or advisory boards

- Mr. Christoph Gross
Member of the supervisory board of Aveco Holding AG, Frankfurt am
Main
Member of the supervisory board of IC Immobilien Holding AG, Frank-
furt am Main
Member of the supervisory board of PNE Wind AG, Cuxhaven (until 31
May 2017)

- Mr. Michael C. Wisser
Member of the supervisory board of WISAG Geb&audereinigung GmbH,
Vienna, Austria
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- Mr. Knuth Henneke
Chairman of the advisory board of Aqua Vital Quell- und Mineralwasser
GmbH, Neuss

- Mr. Mathias Venema
Member of the supervisory board of Frasec Fraport Security Services
GmbH, Frankfurt am Main
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Remuneration of the management board and supervisory board

The remuneration of the management board in the fiscal year amounted
to EUR 3,388k (prior year: EUR 3,190k). The remuneration paid to the
supervisory board in the fiscal year came to EUR 313k (prior year:

EUR 316k). For an individual breakdown and for further details on the

Shares held by board members
The table below shows the shares held by individual board members.

Board member Board position

Other Notes

remuneration of the members of the management board and super-
visory board, please refer to the explanations given in the chapter on the
compensation of corporate bodies in the combined management report.

Number of shares

Christoph Gross Chairman of the supervisory board

Ulrike Bert Member of the supervisory board, employee representative

5,200
500

Security transactions of members of the management board and supervisory board

In fiscal year 2017, no shares were acquired or sold by members of the
management board or the supervisory board or by entities closely
related to the management board.

36. Auditor's fees

The total auditor’s fees in the fiscal year came to EUR 220k and break
down as follows:

Amounts stated in EUR k 2017 2016
Audit services 162 158
Other services 58 13
Total 220 171

37. Significant events after the balance sheet date

No significant events occurred after the balance sheet date.
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38. Corporate governance

The declaration of compliance with the German Corporate Governance
Code pursuant to Sec. 161 AktG was made by the management board and
the supervisory board on 23 October 2017; it was made permanently avail-
able to shareholders on the Company’s website.

39. Disclosures pursuant to Secs. 264 (3) and 264b HGB

The subsidiary Amadeus FiRe Services makes use of the exemption
pursuant to Sec. 264 (3) HGB [““Handelsgesetzbuch’: German Commercial
Code], and Steuer-Fachschule Dr. Endriss applies Sec. 264b HGB with
respect to disclosure obligations.

Frankfurt am Main, 1 March 2018

Peter Haas Robert von Wiilfing

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Audit opinion

To Amadeus FiRe AG

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined
management report

Opinions

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Amadeus FiRe AG, Frankfurt am Main, and its subsidiaries
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the fiscal year
from 1 January to 31 December 2017, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. In addition, we have audited the combined management report of Amadeus FiRe AG
for the fiscal year from 1 January to 31 December 2017. In accordance with the German legal requirements, we
have not audited the content of the statement on corporate governance included in section 8 of the combined
management report or the non-financial statement included in section 9 of the combined management report.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

- the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the IFRSs as adopted
by the EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Sec. 315e (1) HGB and, in
compliance with these requirements, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, and financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance for the fiscal year from 1 January to 31 Decem-
ber 2017, and

- the accompanying combined management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position.
In all material respects, this combined management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements,
complies with German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future de-
velopment. Our opinion on the combined management report does not cover the content of the statement on
corporate governance contained in section 8 of the combined management report or the non-financial statement
contained in section 9 of the combined management report.

Pursuant to Sec. 322 (3) Sentence 1 HGB, we declare that our audit has not led to any reservations relating to the
legal compliance of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report.

Basis for the opinions

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report in
accordance with Sec. 317 HGB and the EU Audit Regulation (No 537/2014, referred to subsequently as “EU Audit
Regulation”) and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits
promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer [Institute of Public Auditors in Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities
under those requirements and principles are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report™ section of our auditor’s report. We are
independent of the group entities in accordance with the requirements of European law and German commercial
and professional law, and we have fulfilled our other German professional responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. In addition, in accordance with Art. 10 (2) f) of the EU Audit Regulation, we declare that we have not
provided non-audit services prohibited under Art. 5 (1) of the EU Audit Regulation. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions on the consolidated financial state-
ments and on the combined management report.
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Key audit matters in the audit of the consolidated financial statements:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year from 1 January to 31 December 2017. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon; we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Below, we describe what we consider to be a key audit matter:

Goodwill impairment test

Reasons why the matter was determined to be a key audit matter:

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least once every fiscal year (impairment test). These tests are generally based on
the present value of future cash flows of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill is allocated. They are based on
projections derived from financial budgets and forecasts approved by the Company’s executive directors. For discoun-
ting, the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of the respective cash-generating unit is used. The outcome of these
tests is highly dependent on the executive directors’ estimate of future cash inflows and the discount rate used and,
therefore, subject to considerable uncertainty. In this light and due to the materiality of goodwill, impairment testing
of goodwill was a key audit matter.

Auditor’s response:

During our audit, we assessed the valuation model underlying the impairment test, in particular its methodical and
mathematical accuracy, with the help of our valuation experts.

We obtained an understanding of the future cash inflows and discount rates underlying the valuations. We discussed
the significant planning assumptions with the executive directors and compared these with the results and net cash
inflows realized in the past to assess the reliability of the budgets and forecasts. In addition, our assessment was
based on a comparison with general and industry-specific market expectations regarding the significant value drivers
in the budgets and forecasts. As even relatively small changes in the discount rate used can have significant effects
on the calculated amounts, we also assessed the inputs used to determine the discount rate and obtained an under-
standing of the calculation method. In addition, we performed our own sensitivity analyses for the cash-generating
units in order to estimate any potential impairment risk associated with a reasonably possible change in a significant
assumption used in the valuation. Moreover, we assessed the information on the goodwill impairment test included
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Our procedures did not lead to any reservations concerning the valuation of goodwill.

Reference to related disclosures:

With regard to the recognition and measurement policies applied for goodwill and the related disclosures on
judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty, refer to the information in the section “Accounting policies” in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Additional disclosures on goodwill made by the Company are
included under the heading ““14. Intangible assets™ in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.



Other information

The executive directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the statement on
corporate governance contained in section 8 of the combined management report and the non-financial statement
contained in section 9 of the combined management report.

Our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined management report do not cover the
other information, and consequently we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in so doing, to consider whether

the other information

- is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, with the combined management report or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

- otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the executive directors and the supervisory board for the consolidated financial
statements and the combined management report

The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that comply, in
all material respects, with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional requirements of German commercial law
pursuant to Sec. 315e (1) HGB, and that the consolidated financial statements, in compliance with these requirements,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position, and financial performance of the Group. In addi-
tion, the executive directors are responsible for such internal control as they have determined necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the executive directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern. In addition, they are responsible for financial reporting based on the going concern basis of accoun-
ting unless there is an intention to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the combined management report that,
as a whole, provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and is, in all material respects, consistent with the
consolidated financial statements, complies with German legal requirements, and appropriately presents the oppor-
tunities and risks of future development. In addition, the executive directors are responsible for such arrangements
and measures (systems) as they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a combined management
report that is in accordance with the applicable German legal requirements, and to be able to provide sufficient
appropriate evidence for the assertions in the combined management report.

The supervisory board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements and of the combined management report.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined
management report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the combined management report
as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and, in all material respects, is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements and the knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal
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requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development, as well as to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined manage-
ment report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Sec. 317 HGB and the EU Audit Regulation and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for
Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer (IDW) will always detect a material
misstatement. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements and this combined management report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and of the combined
management report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of
arrangements and measures (systems) relevant to the audit of the combined management report in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of these systems.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by the executive directors and the reasonableness of
estimates made by the executive directors and related disclosures.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the executive directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the con-
solidated financial statements and in the combined management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our respective opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be able to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements present the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and financial performance of the Group in compliance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional
requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Sec. 315e (1) HGB.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the combined management
report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinions.

Evaluate the consistency of the combined management report with the consolidated financial statements, its con-
formity with [German] law, and the view of the Group’s position it provides.

Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors in the combined
management report. On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the significant
assumptions used by the executive directors as a basis for the prospective information, and evaluate the proper
derivation of the prospective information from these assumptions. We do not express a separate opinion on the
prospective information and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that future
events will differ materially from the prospective information.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant inde-
pendence requirements, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, the related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public dis-
closure about the matter.

Other legal and regulatory requirements

Further information pursuant to Art. 10 of the EU Audit Regulation

We were elected as group auditor by the annual general meeting on 18 May 2017. We were engaged by the super-
visory board on 19 July 2017. We have been the group auditor of Amadeus FiRe AG without interruption since fiscal

year 2003,

We declare that the opinions expressed in this auditor’s report are consistent with the additional report to the audit
committee pursuant to Art. 11 of the EU Audit Regulation (long-form audit report).

In addition to the financial statement audit, we have provided to group entities the following services that are not
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements or in the combined management report:

Other services: Monitoring the implementation of the new sales software program
German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement

The German Public Auditor responsible for the engagement is Christoph von Seidel.
Eschborn/Frankfurt am Main, 1 March 2018

Ernst & Young GmbH
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

U Rk

von Seidel Riicker
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftspriifer
[German Public Auditor] [German Public Auditor]
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Overview of the past several years

Amounts stated in EUR k 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Revenues 130,071 137,003 142,057 161,057 169,726 173,295 184,525
Change to prior year 11.9% 5.3% 3.7% 13.4% 5.4% 2.1% 6.5%
Temporary staffing 96,784 101,075 103,307 118,738 122,730 121,345 124,218
Interim and project management 7,387 7,134 8,033 9,193 9,532 9,579 9,204
Permanent placement 11,660 13,462 13,984 15,698 18,333 21,651 28,963
Training 14,240 15,332 16,733 17,428 19,130 20,719 22,139
Gross profit 55,821 58,281 60,045 67,820 72,761 75,830 82,483
in % 42.9% 42.5% 42.3% 42.1% 42.9% 43.8% 44.7%
Change to prior year 16.5% 4.4% 3.0% 12.9% 7.3% 4.2% 8.8%
EBITDA 22,955 23,524 24,112 27,598 29,467 30,890 33,352
in % 17.6% 17.2% 17.0% 17.1% 17.4% 17.8% 18.1%
EBITA 22,183 22,699 23,270 26,789 28,681 30,038 32,319
in % 17.1% 16.6% 16.4% 16.6% 16.9% 17.3% 17.5%
Change to prior year 17.7% 2.3% 2.5% 15.1% 7.1% 4.7% 7.6%
Gross Profit Conversion
(EBITA / gross profit) 39.7% 38.9% 38.8% 39.5% 39.4% 39.6% 39.2%
EBIT 22,183 19,619 23,270 26,789 28,681 30,038 32,319
in % 17.1% 14.3% 16.4% 16.6% 16.9% 17.3% 17.5%
Change to prior year 17.7% -11.6% 18.6% 15.1% 7.1% 4.7% 7.6%
Profit before tax 22,728 19,657 22,708 26,680 28,164 29,451 31,667
Tax -7,224 -6,672 -6,977 -8,146 -8,601 -8,990 -9,612
Profit after tax 15,504 12,985 15,731 18,534 19,563 20,461 22,065
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
disclosed under liabilities -763 391 -880 -852 -1,222 -1,320 -1,282
Profit for the period 14,718 13,376 14,851 17,682 18,341 19,141 20,783
in % 11.3% 9.8% 10.5% 11.0% 10.8% 11.0% 11.3%
Change to prior year 22.0% -9.1% 11.0% 19.1% 3.7% 4.4% 8.6%
- dallocated to shareholders 14,786 13,497 14,699 17,508 18,361 19,002 20,570
Change to prior year 22.2% -8.7% 8.9% 19.1% 4.9% 3.5% 8.3%
Average number of employees 2,368 2,423 2,427 2,676 2,691 2,655 2,724
Employees on customer assignment 2,017 2,058 2,054 2,285 2,288 2,226 2,242
Sales staff (internal staff) 306 328 333 349 361 387 442
Administrative staff 45 37 40 42 42 42 40
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Amounts stated in EUR k 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Balance sheet total 62,410 59,734 61,618 68,092 71,912 72,746 78,017
Stockholders’ equity 42,694 41,307 40,823 43,794 44,617 45,391 47,125

Equity ratio 68.4% 69.2% 66.3% 64.3% 62.0% 62.4% 60.4%

Return on equity 39.4% 32.1% 37.7% 44.3% 44.6% 45.4% 47.7%
Cash 35,927 35,333 37,564 41,651 42,046 40,448 43,403
Net cash from operating activities 17,212 15,698 18,192 20,921 21,144 19,503 25,493
Net cash from operating activities per share 3.31 3.02 3.50 4.02 4.07 3.75 4.90
Net cash from investing activities -515 -549 -626 -1,320 -2,139 -1,752 -2,170
Net cash from financing activities -9,716 -15,743  -15,335 -15,514 -18,610 -19,349 -20,368
Share price 31.12. 26.65 41.32 54.60 62.40 74.99 73.42 77.21
Earnings per share (in EUR) 2.84 2.60 2.83 3.37 3.53 3.66 3.96
Number of shares (in thousands of units) 5,198 5,198 5,198 5,198 5,198 5,198 5,198
Stock market capitalization 31.12. (in EUR m) ~ 138.5 214.8 283.8 324.40 385.8 381.6 401.0
Dividend per share (in EUR) 2.84 2.95 2.83 3.37 3.53 3.66 3.96*
Total dividend 14,763 15,335 14,711 17,518 18,350 19,026 20,585
Change to prior year 70.1% 3.9% 4.1% 19.1% 4.7% 3.7% 8.2%
Payout ratio 100% 114% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
* Proposal
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E-Mail: berlin@amadeus-fire.de

Bielefeld

Am Lenkwerk 7, Oval Office, 33609 Bielefeld
Tel.: 0521 520174-0, Fax: 0521 520174-9
E-Mail: bielefeld@amadeus-fire.de

Bonn

Graurheindorfer Stral3e 149a, 53117 Bonn
Tel.: 0228 24987-40, Fax: 0228 24987-49
E-Mail: bonn@amadeus-fire.de

Darmstadt

Birkenweg 14 a, 64295 Darmstadt

Tel.: 06151 501174-0, Fax: 06151 501174-9
E-Mail: darmstadt@amadeus-fire.de

Dortmund

Hafenpromenade 1-2, 44263 Dortmund
Tel.: 0231 496628-0, Fax: 0231 496628-19
E-Mail: dortmund@amadeus-fire.de

Dusseldorf

Bennigsen-Platz 1, 40474 Dusseldorf
Tel.: 0211 828934-0, Fax: 0211 828934-49
E-Mail: duesseldorf@amadeus-fire.de

Essen

Ruhrallee 175, 45136 Essen

Tel.: 0201 84125-0, Fax: 0201 84125-19
E-Mail: essen@amadeus-fire.de

STEUER-FACHSCHULE
DR. ENDRISS

Fiihrt zum Erfolg. Seit 1950.

Cologne
Lichtstrae 45-49, 50825 Cologne

Trainingcenter Dusseldorf
Bennigsen-Platz 1, 40474 Dusseldorf

Trainingcenter Frankfurt
Hanauer Landstrafle 160, 60314 Frankfurt

Trainingcenter Hamburg
Steindamm 98, 20099 Hamburg

AKADEMIE

FUR INTERNATIONALE RECHNUNGSLEGUNG

Cologne

LichtstraBe 45-49, 50825 Cologne

Tel.: 0221 93644275, Fax: 0221 936442875
E-Mail: info@internationale-rechnungslegung.de

Frankfurt

Hanauer LandstraBe 160, 60314 Frankfurt/ Main
Tel.: 069 96876-250, Fax: 069 96876-299
E-Mail: frankfurt@amadeus-fire.de

Freiburg

Heinrich-von-Stephan-Strale 20, 79100 Freiburg
Tel.: 0761 388450-0, Fax: 0761 388450-19
E-Mail: freiburg@amadeus-fire.de

Hamburg

Steindamm 98, 20099 Hamburg

Tel.: 040 357573-0, Fax: 040 357573-14
E-Mail: hamburg@amadeus-fire.de

Hanover

Hanomaghof 4 - 30449 Hanover

Tel.: 0511 807184-0, Fax: 0511 807184-599
E-Mail: hannover@amadeus-fire.de

Karlsruhe

Gartenstrale 69, 76133 Karlsruhe

Tel.: 0721 161584-0, Fax: 0721 16158-49
E-Mail: karlsruhe@amadeus-fire.de

Cologne

LichtstraBe 43c, 50825 Cologne

Tel.: 0221 921368-0, Fax: 0221 921368-19
E-Mail: koeln@amadeus-fire.de

Mainz

HolzhofstraRe 7, 55116 Mainz

Tel.: 06131 240504-0, Fax: 06131 240504-9
E-Mail: mainz@amadeus-fire.de

Mannheim

Gottlieb-Daimler-StraBe 10, 68165 Mannheim
Tel.: 0621 150934-0, Fax: 0621 150934-9
E-Mail: mannheim@amadeus-fire.de

Trainingcenter Hanover
Hanomaghof 4, 30449 Hanover

Trainingcenter Stuttgart
KronenstraBe 25, 70178 Stuttgart

Free phone number: 0800 775775-00
E-Mail: info@endriss.de

TaxMaster GmbH

LichtstraBe 45-49, 50825 Cologne

Tel.: 0221 9364420, Fax: 0221 93644233
E-Mail: info@taxmaster.de

Munich

PfeuferstraBe 9, 81373 Munich

Tel.: 089 212128-0, Fax: 089 212128-15
E-Mail: muenchen@amadeus-fire.de

Minster

Am Mittelhafen 14, 48155 Miinster

Tel.: 0251 210160-0, Fax: 0251 210160-19
E-Mail: muenster@amadeus-fire.de

Stuttgart

KronenstraBe 25, 70174 Stuttgart

Tel.: 0711 162404-0, Fax: 0711 162404-9
E-Mail: stuttgart@amadeus-fire.de

Branch offices of Amadeus FiRe group
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Responsible

Amadeus FiRe AG

Hanauer Landstral3e 160

60314 Frankfurt/M.

Tel.: 069 96876-186

Fax: 069 96876-182
Investor-Relations@amadeus-fire.de
www.amadeus-fire.de

Annual report in PDF-format
www.amadeus-fire.de/investor-relations



Amadeus FiRe AG

Hanauer Landstralle 160 - 60314 Frankfurt am Main
Tel.: 069 96876-186 - Fax: 069 96876-182

E-Mail: investor-relations@amadeus-fire.de
Internet; www.amadeus-fire.de

AMADEUS FIRE

RECRUITING SERVICES

Amadeus FiRe group online

www.amadeus-fire.de

www.endriss.de
www.internationale-rechnungslegung.de
www.taxmaster.de

Amadeus FiRe Newsletter

Subscribe to our monthly newsletter for

concisely presented information:

® Candidate profiles of professionals and
executives currently available in your region

® |nvitations to specialist events

m Specialist training offerings

® Examples of current projects

www.amadeus-fire.de/newsletter
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